
 
 
 A meeting of the STANDARDS COMMITTEE will be held in ROOM 

CVSO1A, CIVIC SUITE, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST. MARY'S 
STREET, HUNTINGDON, CAMBS, PE29 3TN on THURSDAY, 6 
SEPTEMBER 2012 at 4:00 PM and you are requested to attend for 
the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 APOLOGIES 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   
 
 To elect a Chairman of the Committee for the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 
2. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 

21st June 2012. 
 

3. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 
 To receive from Members, declarations as to disclosable pecuniary, 

non-disclosable pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in relation to any 
Agenda Item – See Notes below.  
 

4. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN   
 
 To appoint a Vice-Chairman of the Committee for the ensuing 

Municipal Year. 
 

5. APPOINTMENT OF LEAD AND DEPUTY INDEPENDENT 
PERSONS  (Pages 7 - 20) 

 
 To consider a report by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 

Monitoring Officer regarding the process for the appointment of Lead 
and Deputy Independent Persons. 
 

6. APPOINTMENT OF PARISH COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES  
(Pages 21 - 22) 

 
 To consider a report by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 

Monitoring Officer regarding the inclusion of  Parish Council 
representation on the new Committee. 
 

7. PROPOSED TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
(Pages 23 - 26) 

 
 To consider a report by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 

Monitoring Officer on potential terms of reference for the new 
Committee. 
 



 
8. NEW STANDARDS REGIME - PROGRESS  (Pages 27 - 68) 
 
 To consider a report by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 

Monitoring Officer on the progress achieved thus far in implementing 
the new Standards regime. 
 

9. MONITORING OFFICER PROTOCOL AND FLOWCHART   
 
 To confirm the final version of the Monitoring Officer Protocol and flow 

chart as the process for consideration of complaints that a Member 
has failed to comply with their Council’s adopted Code of Conduct – 
To Follow 
 

10. PROPOSED TRAINING PROGRAMME  (Pages 69 - 70) 
 
 To consider an approach to training for District and Parish Councils on 

the newly adopted Code of Conduct.  Report by the Head of Legal & 
Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer enclosed. 
 
NB:  A briefing on the Code of Conduct for Committee Members 
will follow the meeting. 
 
 

11. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   
 
 Thursday 6th December 2012 at 4pm. 

 
 

 
 Dated this 29 day of August 2012 
 

  Head of Paid Service 
  
 

Notes 
 
A. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
 (1) Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and 

unless you have obtained dispensation, cannot discuss or vote on the 
matter at the meeting and must also leave the room whilst the matter is 
being debated or voted on. 

 
 (2) A Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest if it 
 

 (a) relates to you, or 
  (b) is an interest of - 
 
   (i) your spouse or civil partner; or 
   (ii) a person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or 
   (iii) a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners 
 
  and you are aware that the other person has the interest. 
 
 (3) Disclosable pecuniary interests includes - 



 
 
   (a) any employment or profession carried out for profit or gain; 
  (b) any financial benefit received by the Member in respect of expenses 

incurred carrying out his or her duties as a Member (except from the 
Council); 

  (c) any current contracts with the Council; 
  (d) any beneficial interest in land/property within the Council's area; 
  (e) any licence for a month or longer to occupy land in the Council's area; 
  (f) any tenancy where the Council is landlord and the Member (or person 

in (2)(b) above) has a beneficial interest; or 
  (g) a beneficial interest (above the specified level) in the shares of any 

body which has a place of business or land in the Council's area. 
 
B. Other Interests 
 
 (4) If a Member has a non-disclosable pecuniary interest or a non-pecuniary 

interest then you are required to declare that interest, but may remain to 
discuss and vote. 

 
 (5) A Member has a non-disclosable pecuniary interest or a non-pecuniary 

interest where - 
 

(a) a decision in relation to the business being considered might reasonably 
be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial standing of you or a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close 
association to a greater extent than it would affect the majority of the 
council tax payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the ward or electoral area 
for which you have been elected or otherwise of the authority's 
administrative area, or 

  (b) it relates to or is likely to affect any of the descriptions referred to above, 
but in respect of a member of your family (other than specified in (2)(b) 
above) or a person with whom you have a close association 

 
 and that interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 
 
Please contact Ms C Deller, Democratic Services Manager, Tel No 01480 
388007/e-mail:  Christine.Deller@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  if you have a general 
query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the 
meeting, or would like information on any decision taken by the 
Committee/Panel. 
Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed 
towards the Contact Officer. 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except 
during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 

If you would like a translation of 
Agenda/Minutes/Reports or would like a  

large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and 

we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 



 
 

Emergency Procedure 
In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest 
emergency exit. 
 
 



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the STANDARDS COMMITTEE held in 

Room CVSO1A, Civic Suite, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, 
Huntingdon PE29 3TN on Thursday, 21 June 2012. 

   
 PRESENT: Mr D L Hall - Chairman 
   
  Councillors P J Downes, Ms L Duffy, R S 

Farrer, G J Harlock and A Hansard. 
 

  Messrs J Alexander, P Boothman, and 
G Watkins and Mrs S Stafford. 

   
 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 

submitted on behalf of Councillor 
Mrs B E Boddington and Mr M Lynch.  

 
27. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

 
 RESOLVED 

 
 that Mr D L Hall be elected Chairman of the Committee for the 

period ending 30th June 2012. 
 

28. MINUTES   
 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 1st December 
2011 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
The Chairman welcomed new Councillor Ms L Duffy to her first 
meeting of the Committee. 
 

29. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 No interests were declared by the Members present. 
 

30. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN   
 

 RESOLVED 
 
 that Mr P Boothman be appointed Vice-Chairman of the 

Committee and Chairman of the Referrals (Assessment) Sub 
Committee for the period ending 30th June 2012.  

 
31. REPORTS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEES   

 
 Reports on the activities of the Referrals (Assessment), Review and 

Consideration & Hearing Sub Committees were presented to the 
Committee by the Chairmen present.  In total, seven meetings of the 
Sub Committees had taken place since the last meeting and these 
had involved the consideration of allegations relating to Members of 
the District and St Neots Town, Upwood & The Raveleys and Yaxley 
Parish Councils 
 

Agenda Item 2

1



32. NEW STANDARDS REGIME   
 

 The Committee considered a report by the Head of Legal & 
Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer (a copy of which is 
appended in the Minute Book) on the issues that required to be 
considered to ensure that the District Council was ready to comply 
with the requirements of Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011 and 
recently published Regulations in respect of new ‘standards’ and code 
of conduct arrangements.  A further example of a potential Code of 
Conduct that might be adopted by the Council was tabled and a copy 
of this document also is appended in the Minute Book. 
 
Members understood that the Council still was required to 
 
• to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by 

elected Members and co opted Members of the Authority; 
• adopt a Code dealing with the conduct that is expected of 

Members and co opted Members of the Authority when they 
are acting in that capacity; and 

• have in place arrangements under which complaints can be 
investigated and under which allegations of misconduct can 
be made. 

 
It was also noted that the Monitoring Officer was required to establish 
and maintain a Register of Interests of Members and co opted 
Members and provide a means for disclosure of pecuniary and other 
interests.  Whilst there was no continuing requirement for a Member 
to keep their declaration up to date except on re-election/re-
appointment, the Committee considered that it would be good 
practice for Members to review their registered interests regularly and 
update their declaration as necessary.    
 
The Committee was further advised that the District Council and all 
Parish Councils within Huntingdonshire were required to adopt a new 
Code setting out the conduct expected of their Councillors when 
acting in their capacity as an elected Member.  Having reviewed the 
merits of draft Codes compiled by the Cambridgeshire District and 
County Councils, the Department for Communities and Local 
Government, the National Association of Local Councils and the Local 
Government Association, the Committee indicated a preference for 
the option which had been tabled which was based on a draft 
produced by a well regarded legal expert on ethical standards 
matters. 
 
Having discussed these and other matters consequent upon the 
adoption of a new Code and the publication of new Regulations, the 
Committee 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that the Council be recommended to adopt the Code of 
Conduct appended hereto as the basis for the new 
Code of Conduct for Huntingdonshire and the Head of 
Legal & Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer 
authorised to finalise the preferred option after 
consultation with the Chairman of the Standards 
Committee; 

2



 
(b) that the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 

Monitoring Officer be authorised to establish and 
maintain a new register of Members’ Interests in 
compliance with the requirements of the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council’s Code of Conduct and ensure it 
is available for public inspection in accordance with the 
Act; 
 

(c) that the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 
Monitoring Officer be authorised to establish and 
maintain new registers of interest for each Parish 
Council in Huntingdonshire in compliance with the 
Localism Act 2011 and the Code of Conduct adopted 
by the respective Parish Council and ensure that they 
are available for public inspection in accordance with 
the Act;  
 

(d) that, after consultation with the Chairman of the 
Committee, the Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
and Monitoring Officer be requested to arrange 
sessions to train District, Town and Parish Councillors 
on the new registration and disclosure requirements; 

 
(e) that the Council be recommended to appoint a 

Standards Committee comprising seven elected 
Members of the District Council based on appropriate 
political proportionality and to include one Member who 
is a Member of the Executive (as currently constituted); 

 
(f) that the Council be recommended to invite Parish 

Councils to nominate two parish councillors to be co 
opted as non voting Members of the new Committee;  

 
(g) that the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 

Monitoring Officer be authorised to commence the 
process for the appointment of at least 2 independent 
person(s) (one permanent and one able to act in 
reserve) and to undertake a review of the role and 
remuneration of the position;  
 

(h) that a Selection Panel comprising three Members of 
the Committee be established to short list and interview 
candidates for the position of independent persons and 
to recommend an appointment to Council;  
 

(i)  that the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 
Monitoring Officer be authorised to pursue, if 
appropriate, the possibility of a joint recruitment 
exercise with Cambridgeshire Authorities to appoint 
independent persons. 

 
(j) that, the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 

Monitoring Officer be authorised to finalise the protocol 
for the discharge of functions in relation to allegations 
that a Member of Huntingdonshire District Council or 
Parish Council in the District failed to comply with the 

3



adopted Code of Conduct;  
 
(k) that the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 

Monitoring Officer be appointed as the Proper Officer 
to receive complaints of failure to comply with the Code 
of Conduct and authorised to determine allegations in 
accordance with the agreed protocol; 

 
(l) that the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and 

Monitoring Officer be authorised, after consultation with 
the Chairmen of the Standards Committee and 
Corporate Governance Panel to make any appropriate 
variations to the Constitution consequent upon the 
changes to the District Council’s standards 
arrangements; 
 

(m)  that the Corporate Governance Panel be requested to 
consider amending the Council's Procedure Rules 
(Standing Orders) to require that a Member must 
withdraw from a meeting room during the consideration 
of any item of business in which he/she has a 
disclosable pecuniary interest; and 
 

(n) that the arrangements for granting dispensations 
requested by District Councillors as described in 
paragraph 7.6 of the report now submitted be 
endorsed. 

 
33. APPLICATIONS FOR DISPENSATION   

 
 A report by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and Monitoring 

Officer was submitted (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 
Book) regarding two applications received for dispensation from St. 
Ives Town and Great & Little Gidding Parish Councils. 
 
It was explained that following elections in both parishes, the Clerks 
to these authorities had written formally to request dispensations to 
allow business in relation to community facilities in both parishes to 
be conducted during the new terms of office of the Councils.  
Therefore, to prevent the transaction of town and parish council 
business from being impeded by virtue of the interests that would 
need to be declared by the Members of the two Councils in question, 
the Committee 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that dispensation be granted to enable the thirteen 
Councillors of St Ives Town Council, who act as Board 
Members to a Community Interest Community set up to 
manage the Corn Exchange, St Ives, to speak and vote 
on matters likely to affect the company at Council or 
Committee meetings for the period ending 30th April 
2016; and 
 

(b) that dispensation be granted to enable the seven 
Members of Great & Little Gidding Parish Council to 
speak and vote on business arising at Council 

4



meetings concerning the Village Hall and Recreation 
Ground and the Great Gidding Charity for the period 
ending 30th April 2016. 

 
34. LOG OF CODE OF CONDUCT  ENQUIRIES   

 
 The Committee received and noted the Code of Conduct enquiries 

which had been recorded by the Head of Legal & Democratic 
Services and the Monitoring Officer since the last meeting in 
December (an extract of the log is appended in the Minute Book). 
 

35. TRAINING UPDATE   
 

 The Monitoring Officer reported that he had presented training on the 
new Code of Conduct to St Ives Town Council, to the Society of Local 
Council Clerks and to newly elected District Councillors as part of 
their ‘new member induction’.  
 

36. CASE DETAILS   
 

 For interest and training purposes, the Committee noted details of a 
case which had involved a Member seeking a judicial review of a 
decision taken by the Adjudication Panel for Wales in respect of an 
alleged breach of a local authority Code of Conduct.  Given the 
strength of the doctrine of ‘right to freedom of expression’ and the fact 
that the majority of comments posted by a Councillor on his website 
were directed at other Councillors, it was held that the decision by the 
Adjudication Panel was a disproportionate interference with the 
Councillor’s rights under the European Convention on Human Rights.   
 

37. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   
 

 Having noted that there was now no requirement for the Committee to 
meet, as previously scheduled, on Thursday 5th July 2012, the 
Chairman, Mr Hall thanked Members for their support of him during 
his Chairmanship and for their forbearance and contributions during 
the detailed consideration of the new standards arrangements.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



   
STANDARDS COMMITTEE    6TH SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
 
 

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS 
(Report by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services 

and Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Chapter 7 [Sections 28 (7) (8)] of the Localism Act 2011 established a 

new category of Independent Persons (IP) and required a “relevant 
Authority” including the District Council to provide for the appointment 
of at least one Independent Person. 

 
1.2 At the Special Meeting of the Committee in June, the Head of Legal & 

Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer was authorised to 
commence the process for the appointment of at least two 
Independent Persons (one permanent Lead Member and one able to 
act in reserve). 

 
2. ROLE OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS 
 
2.1 The functions of the Independent Person are:- 
 

♦  to be consulted by the Authority before it makes a finding as to 
whether a Member has failed to comply with the Code of 
Conduct or decides on action to be taken in respect of that 
Member (this means on a decision to take no action where the 
investigation finds no evidence of breach or, where the 
investigation finds evidence that there has been a breach, on 
any local resolution of the complaint, or in any finding of breach 
on any decision on action as a result of that finding); 

♦  to be consulted by the Authority in respect of a Standards 
complaint at any other stage; 

♦  to be consulted by a Member or Co-Opted Member of the 
District Council or of a Parish Council against whom the 
complaint has been made; and 

♦  potentially to be involved in the grant of dispensations. 
 
2.2 A person cannot be appointed as an Independent Person if they are 

or were within a period of five years prior to their appointment:- 
 

♦  a Member, Co-Opted Member or Officer of the Authority; 
♦  a Member, Co-Opted Member or Officer of a Parish Council in 

the District Council’s area; 
♦  or a relative or close friend of either of the above. 
 
Under transitional arrangements, former Independent Members of the 
Standards Committee are eligible to apply for the role but their term 
of office can only last until 30th June 2013. 
 

2.3 As the remuneration of the Independent Person would no longer fall 
under the Scheme of Members’ Allowances, the remuneration for the 
role can be determined without reference to an Independent 

Agenda Item 5

7



   
Remuneration Panel.  Having been authorised to review the 
remuneration of the position and bearing in mind that the role of the 
appointee is likely to be less onerous, the Head of Legal & 
Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer has fixed the allowance 
at £1,000 for the Lead Independent Person and £500 for the Deputy 
and suggested that travel and subsistence expenses also should be 
payable.  This scale of allowance is common to other District Councils 
in Cambridgeshire. 

 
3. RECRUITMENT PROCESS 
 
3.1 Independent Persons must be appointed through a process of public 

advertisement and application.  A small article “Setting the Standards” 
was placed in an early August edition of the Hunts Post drawing 
attention to the vacancy and the availability of a recruitment pack on 
the Standards and Conduct Pages of the District Council’s website.  A 
copy of the pack is reproduced as an Appendix.  The vacancy also 
featured on the Home Page of the website.  Copies of the pack also 
were sent to former Independent Members given the expertise and 
skills they had gained during their service under the former regime. 

 
3.2 The appointments will be required to be “approved by a majority of 

the Members of the Authority” and so it is envisaged that a Panel of 
the Committee, perhaps comprising three Members (including the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee) together with the 
Monitoring Officer should interview the applicants and then 
recommend to Council at the meeting to be held on 26th September 
2012 candidates for appointment as Lead Independent Person and 
Deputy. 

 
3.3 Appointment is likely to be for a three-year term, subject to annual 

ratification by the Council.  The Independent Person may attend 
meetings of the Standards Committee but only as a non-voting co-
optee. 

 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 The Committee is requested to appoint a Panel to interview and 

recommend to the Council on 26th September 2012 candidates for 
appointment to the positions of Lead and Deputy Independent 
Persons. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Localism Act 2011  
 
Contact Officers:  
Colin Meadowcroft, Head of Legal & Democratic Services and Monitoring 
Officer/Christine Deller, Democratic Services Manager 
Tel Nos:  (01480) 388021/388007. 

8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recruitment Pack for appointment of 
Independent Person 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pathfinder House St Mary's Street Huntingdon PE29 3TN 

9



 

10



1 
 

APPOINTMENT OF LEAD AND DEPUTY INDEPENDENT PERSON 
 
 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct and Complaints Process 
 
Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, the Council is required to 
appoint an Independent Person to assist the Council in promoting and 
maintaining high standards of conduct amongst its elected members and town 
and parish councillors. 
 
The Independent Person will be consulted before a decision is made on an 
investigated complaint and usually on receipt of the initial complaint.  The 
Independent Person may also be consulted on other standards matters, 
including by a Councillor who is the subject of an allegation. 
 
To cover cases where the Independent Person has a conflict of interest or is 
unavailable for any reason, the Council also propose to appoint a ‘deputy’ 
Independent Person. 
 
A fixed allowance of £1,000 per annum is payable to the Independent Person 
and £500 for the reserve Independent Person, together with reimbursement of 
travel and subsistence expenses. 
 
For further details, including an information pack and eligibility criteria, please 
visit the Council’s website   www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk or contact: 
 
 Colin Meadowcroft 
 Monitoring Officer 
 Huntingdonshire District Council 
 Pathfinder House 
 St Mary’s Street 
 Huntingdon PE29 3TN 
 
 Tel No: 01480 388021 
 
 Email: colin.meadowcroft@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 
The closing date for applications is 25 August 2012.  Interviews will be held 
during the week commencing 3 September 2012.  Any offer of appointment is 
subject to the approval of Full Council on 26 September 2012. 

11



2 
 

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON 
 
 
Background Information 
 
Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011 (the “Act”) the way that 
Huntingdonshire District Council (the “District Council”) deals with conduct 
complaints about its elected members and town and parish councillors in its 
area changed with effect from 1 July 2012. 
 
The previous national statutory framework has been abolished and the District 
Council is now responsible for deciding how to deal with standards issues at a 
local level, including adopting its own local code and determining what 
arrangements it will adopt to deal with complaints. 
 
The Council adopted a new Code of Conduct at its meeting on 4 July 2012. 
Town and Parish Councils will also have to adopt a Code that will apply to its 
Councillors and this may or may not be the same District Council Code. 
 
The Act provides that the Council must appoint an Independent Person to assist 
in discharging these responsibilities.  The Independent person will be consulted 
before a decision is made on an investigation that has been carried out and 
may be consulted before a decision is taken as to whether to reject a complaint, 
or refer it for investigation or to seek some other resolution.  Full details of the 
role and responsibilities of the Independent Person are included in this 
Recruitment Pack. 
 
It is intended to appoint an Independent Person together with a “Deputy”, to act 
as Independent Person in the event that the person appointed is unable to act 
for any reason.  
 
Appointment is likely to be for a three year, subject to annual ratification by the 
Council. Under the legislation, anyone appointed who was previously an 
Independent Member on the District Council’s Standards Committee, can only 
be appointed until 30 June 2013. 
 
The exact detail of the complaints process is currently being finalised and when 
completed training shall be provided to the successful applicants.

12



3 
 

SELECTION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT PERSON 
 
 
Skills and Competencies 
 
The Independent Person will have: 
 
• a keen interest in standards in public life. 
• a wish to serve the local community and uphold local democracy. 
• the ability to be objective, independent and impartial. 
• sound decision making skills. 
 
The Independent Person will: 
 
• be a person in whose impartiality and integrity the public can have 

confidence. 
• understand and comply with confidentiality requirements. 
• have a demonstrable interest in local issues. 
• have an awareness of the importance of ethical behaviours. 
• be a good communicator. 
 
Desirable additional criteria are: 
 
• working knowledge/experience of local government or other public 

service and/or of large complex organisations and awareness of and 
sensitivity to the political process. 

• knowledge and understanding of judicial/quasi-judicial or complaints 
processes. 

 
You should demonstrate in your application how you meet the above criteria as 
this will assist the short-listing process. Selection will be by application form and 
by interview. 
 
 
NOTE: You will be required to be contactable at all times during normal working 

hours by telephone or by email and to be available to attend hearings 
which may be held in the day time and at relatively short notice. 

13



4 
 

Eligibility for Appointment 
 
A person cannot be appointed as an Independent Person if they are or were 

within a period of 5 years prior to the appointment: 
 
• a member, co-opted member or officer of the authority; 
• A member, co-opted member or officer of a parish council in the District 

Council’s area; 
•  or a relative or close friend of either of the above. 
 
However, by virtue of transitional arrangements, former independent 
members of the Council’s Standards Committee are eligible to apply for the 
role, but their term of appointment will only be to 30 June 2013. 
 
You can check the lists of elected Councillors on the Council’s website at:  
 
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/Councils%20and%20Democracy/Council/Co
uncillors/Pages/default.aspx 

14



5 
 

ROLE OF INDEPENDENT PERSON –  
HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Role Description 
 
Responsible to: The Council 
 
Liaison with: Monitoring Officer, Members of the Standards Committee, 

Officers and Members of the District Council and Town and 
Parish Councillors within the District and other Independent 
Persons. 

 
1. To assist the Council in promoting high standards of conduct by elected 

and co-opted Members of Huntingdonshire District Council and Town and 
Parish Councillors within its area and in particular to uphold the Code of 
Conduct adopted by the Council and the seven principles of public office, 
namely selflessness, honesty, integrity, objectivity, accountability, 
openness and leadership. 

 
2. To be consulted before a decision is made on an investigation that has 

been carried out and to be available to attend meetings of the Hearing 
Panel of the Standards Committee for this purpose. 

 
3. To be available as required for consultation by the Monitoring Officer 

and/or the Standards Committee before a decision is taken as to whether 
to reject a complaint, or refer it for investigation or to seek some other 
resolution. 

 
4. To be available for consultation by any elected Member, including any 

Town and Parish Councillor, who is the subject of a standards complaint. 
 
5. To develop a sound understanding of the ethical framework as it operates 

within Huntingdonshire District Council and its Town and Parish Councils. 
 
6. To participate in training events to develop skills, knowledge and 

experience and in networks developed for Independent Persons operating 
outside the District Council’s area. 

 
7. To attend training events organised and promoted by the Council’s 

Standards Committee. 
 
8. To act as advocate and ambassador for the Council in promoting ethical 

behaviour.

15



6 
 

16



 

 
 

 
 

APPLICATION FOR THE POSITION OF INDEPENDENT PERSON 
 
 
Individuals who wish to be considered for appointment as Independent Person at 
Huntingdonshire District Council (the “District Council”) are requested to provide the 
following information to support their application.  All information provided will be treated in 
the strictest confidence and will only be used for the purposes of selection.  Please feel 
free to use a separate continuation page if you wish to expand upon your answer to any 
question outlined below. 
 
 
1. PERSONAL DETAILS 
  
 Name: ……………………………………………………………….. 
 Address: ……………………………………………………………….. 
 ……………………………………………………………….. 
 ……………………………………………………………….. 

 Postcode ……………………………………………………………….. 
 Contact Details  
 Daytime Tel No: ……………………………………………………………….. 
 Daytime Fax No: ……………………………………………………………….. 
 Email Address: ……………………………………………………………….. 
 
 
2. QUALIFICATIONS 
 (Please list in particular any qualifications which you think are relevant to the position of 

Independent Person) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



 

 
3. SUMMARY OF EXPERIENCE 
 (Please give a brief account of your experience including career, public and voluntary work 

together with the nature of your current or most recent occupation) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. RELEVANT EXPERTISE/SKILLS 
 (Please outline briefly any knowledge or expertise which you believe would be particularly 

relevant to your role as an Independent Person having regard to the selection criteria and role 
description) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 

 
5. Why do you wish to be considered for appointment as Independent Person and 
what particular attributes do you believe you would bring to the role? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Please provide any additional information you may wish to give in support of 

your application: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 

 

7. References will be taken up for all applicants who are invited for interview 
 
 1. Name: …………………………..… 2. Name: …………………………..… 
  Address: …………………………..…  Address: …………………………..… 
  …………………………..…   …………………………..… 
  …………………………..…   …………………………..… 
  Postcode …………………………..…  Postcode …………………………..… 
  Tel No: …………………………..…  Tel No: …………………………..… 

 
 
8.  Please indicate below for which role(s) you wish to be considered 
 

• Lead Independent Person  YES/NO* 

• Deputy Independent Person  YES/NO* 

 
In submitting this application, I declare that: 
 
• I am not currently and have not during the past five years been a Member or Officer 

of the District Council; and 
• I am not currently and have not during the past five years been a Member or Officer 

of any Town or Parish council within the area of the District Council; and  
• I am not related to, or a close friend of, any person who is currently a Member or 

Officer of the District Council or of any Town or Parish Council within the area of the 
District Council; and 

• I am not actively engaged in local party political activity.* 
 

OR 
 

• I was an Independent Member of the District Council’s Standards Committee.* 
 
Signed:  ................................................................................................................. 
 
Date: .................................................................................................................... 
 
Please return this application form by 25 August 2012 addressed to: 
 

 Colin Meadowcroft 
 Monitoring Officer 
 Huntingdonshire District Council 
 Pathfinder House 
 St Mary’s Street 
 Huntingdon PE29 3TN 
 

or email the completed form to colin.meadowcroft@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  
 

* Please delete as applicable 

20



   
STANDARDS COMMITTEE    6TH SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
 

APPOINTMENT OF PARISH COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 
(Report by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and  

Monitoring Officer)  
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Members may recall that Regulations arising under the Local 

Government Act 2000 required the former Standards Committee to 
comprise at least two Members from Town or Parish Councils for 
which the Committee was responsible and for Parish representatives 
also to be present at meetings when matters relating to Town or 
Parish Councils were being considered. 

 
1.2 Whist the District Council will continue to have responsibility for 

dealing with standards complaints against Town or Parish 
Councillors, there is no longer a duty for Parish Council 
representatives to be appointed to the Committee and consequently 
the Parish Council representatives on the former Standards 
Committee have ceased to hold office. 

 
1.3 However, the District Council can choose whether it wishes to 

continue to involve Town or Parish Council representatives in their 
new Standards Committee and if so, how many. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 At the meeting in June, the Committee recommended that the Council 

should resolve ‘to invite Parish Councils to nominate Parish 
Councillors to be co-opted as non-voting Members of the Committee’.  
This course of action was approved by the Council at its meeting held 
on 4th July, 2012. 

 
2.2 As the Committee will still be involved in considering complaints in 

respect of Parish Councillors and in training Parish Councils on the 
Code of Conduct it is arguable that, having Parish representatives as 
co-opted non-voting Members on the Committee (or as part of case 
hearings) would ensure that the Committee retained an insight into 
local councils amongst its membership.  Such representation also 
could continue to bring knowledge about local issues which has been 
helpful, in the past, when assessing Parish cases.   

 
2.3 Due to a resignation the former Committee operated successfully for 

some time with only two rather than three Parish Council 
representatives in place.  This gave the Committee the flexibility it 
required to undertake the initial assessment of Member complaints 
and to be able to progress any subsequent reviews or hearings. 

 
3. APPOINTMENT PROCESS 
 
3.1 The Council has always approached the Cambridgeshire and 

Peterborough Association of Local Councils (and its predecessor) for 
nominations to any vacancy which has arisen in Town and Parish 
Council representation.  Whilst there is concern that CPALC might not 
be as representative of Town and Parish Councils as previously, the 

Agenda Item 6

21



   
District Council still needs to demonstrate that it is appointing Town 
and Parish Council representatives to the Committee in a fair and 
open way. 

 
3.2 Whilst it is for the District Council to decide how it wishes to recruit 

and appoint Town and Parish Council representatives, it is important 
that these representatives should have the trust of Town and Parish 
Councils in the authority’s area and therefore the Committee might 
consider that they should be directly involved in the selection process.  
With this in mind and given the experience and knowledge of the 
former Town and Parish Council representatives, the Committee may 
consider it reasonable to – 

 
♦  invite Messrs J Alexander and G Watkins to express an interest 

in the two posts of Town and Parish Council representative on 
the Committee; 

♦  invite the views of CPALC on the appointment process and if 
considered appropriate, to seek the two nominations required 
through their membership; and 

♦  invite all Parish Councils to request their Members to express 
an interest in the positions. 

 
3.4 Members are reminded that a small allowance of £231 per annum 

formerly was payable and any travelling and subsistence costs 
incurred in attending meetings of the Committee and training events 
was met by the District Council. 

 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 (a) that Members reaffirm their decision to appoint two Town or 

Parish Councillors to be co-opted as non-voting Members of the 
Committee; 

 
 (b) that an allowance of £231 per annum be made payable to the 

two appointed Town or Parish Council representatives plus 
reimbursement for any subsistence/travelling costs incurred in 
attending meetings of the Committee or training events; 

 
 (c) that Members’ views be invited on the most appropriate way to 

appoint two Town or Parish Council representatives to the 
Committee; and 

 
 (d) that, subject to the receipt of expressions of interest via 

whichever method is selected by the Committee, the Monitoring 
Officer be authorised to appoint two Town or Parish Council 
representatives after consultation with the Independent Person. 

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Previous Committee reports – July 2010 and June 2012. 
 
 
 
Contact Officers:  
Christine Deller, Democratic Services Manager 
Tel Nos:  (01480) 388007. 

22



   
STANDARDS COMMITTEE    6TH SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
 
 

PROPOSED CHANGES TO TERMS OF REFERENCE  
(Report by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and  

Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The special meeting of the Committee in June 2012 recommended 

the Council ‘to authorise the Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
and Monitoring Officer, after consultation with the Chairman of the 
Standards Committee and the Corporate Governance Panel to make 
appropriate variations to the Constitution consequent upon the 
changes to the District Council’s Standards arrangements.’  

 
1.2 The Council approved this recommendation at its meeting on 4th July 

2012.  The Council also agreed to retain a Standards Committee 
comprising seven elected Members on the basis that there still was a 
need to respond to standards issues and consider how best to deal 
with complaints and investigations. 

 
1.3 Because the timescale for the adoption of the new Code and its 

implications was short, there was little opportunity to consider in any 
detail how a new Standards Committee might operate in the future.  
Reports elsewhere on this Agenda consider the potential for Parish 
Council representation on the new Committee and the appointment of 
Independent Persons.  Both would be co-opted to the Committee as 
non-voting Members. 

 
1.4 It is opportune therefore to consider the terms of reference for the 

new Committee and to update in particular, Article 9 of the 
Constitution which relates to the Standards Committee.   

 
2. ARTICLE 9 – STANDARDS COMMITTEE:  ISSUES 
 
2.1 A copy of the current Article 9 is appended with suggested 

amendments to reflect the way in which it is envisaged the Committee 
might begin to operate. 

 
2.2 There are several issues to consider.  In terms of attendance, there is 

no longer a requirement for the Independent Person or Deputy to be 
present at a meeting of the Committee for the proceedings to be valid 
nor for Town and Parish Councillors to be present when matters 
relating to Town and Parish Councils or their Members are being 
considered.  The Committee may wish to consider whether this 
arrangement should continue irrespective of the absence of any 
statutory requirement in this respect. 

 
2.3 Members will recall that formerly misconduct complaints were 

considered through a process involving three separate Sub-
Committees.  Whilst the new regime presents an opportunity to 
simplify this approach, the Committee may consider it appropriate (for 
greater flexibility) to appoint a Sub-Committee to respond to any 
complaints which may arise in the future.  The Localism Act also gave 

Agenda Item 7

23



   
discretion for dispensations to be granted in certain circumstances by 
the Monitoring Officer.  There are still circumstances, however, when 
it might be appropriate that discretion to grant dispensation remains 
with the Committee or a Sub-Committee, after consultation with the 
Independent Person.  Should requests for dispensations require to be 
considered urgently it could be more convenient to call meetings of a 
Sub-Committee rather than the full Committee. 

 
2.4 It is suggested that a potential Sub-Committee might comprise 3 

Members but the Committee might consider that the Independent 
Person (or Deputy) and a Town and Parish Council representative 
also should become involved albeit in a non-voting capacity.   

 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Members’ views are invited on the proposed new Terms of Reference 

for the Standards Committee and the potential for the appointment of 
a Sub Committee to deal with complaints and respond to urgent 
applications for dispensation. .   

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
District Council Constitution 
 
 
Contact Officers:  
Christine Deller, Democratic Services Manager 
Tel Nos:  (01480) 388007. 
 

24



ARTICLE 9 -  

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
 

1. STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
 The Council shall at the annual meeting establish a Standards Committee. 

under Section 102 of the Local Government Act.  Its composition shall be 
governed by proportionality and it shall be subject to the same requirements 
on confidential and exempt information as any other Committee.  The 
Committee must be chaired by an independent member.  

 
2. MEMBERSHIP 
 
 The Standards Committee shall comprise - 
 

 7 members of the Council (of whom one must be to include one a 
member of the Cabinet but excluding the who is a Member of 
theExecutive LeaderExecutive); 

 1 Independent Person (IP)4 independent members who are is  not  a 
councillors or officers of the Council or any other local authority; and 
(to be appointed*) 

 3 2 town or parish councillors, representing town and parish councils 
in the District.(to be appointed*) 

 
 A member of the Cabinet may not chair the Committee. 
 
 The independent members person (and Deputy) shall be appointed to serve 

on the Committee for a term of four  three years from the date of their 
appointment as required under Section 28(7) of the Localism Act. and iIn the 
event that the iIndependent mPersonember fails to attend a meeting or 
function associated with the Committee for a period of nine months, that 
member would be automatically disqualified from his/her membership of the 
Committee duties.  An Independent Person shall be eligible for 
reappointment for a further term or terms.  

  
 The Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Committee will be elected by the 

Committee and the Chairman of the Committee, or  or in his/her absence, 
the Vice-Chairman, irrespective of whether that person is an elected 
Member, should present the report of the Committee at Council meetings. 

 
3. VALIDITY OF PROCEEDINGS 
  
 The iIndependent membersPerson  and town or parish councillors will be 

entitled to vote at meetings to attend meetings as non voting co optees.  The 
quorum for a meeting of the Committee is at least three members of the 
Council and at least one independent member.  The town or parish 
councillor must be present when matters relating to town and parish councils 
or their members are being considered.?? 

 
 Where at least one independent member would have been present for the 

duration of the meeting but for the fact that he was prevented or restricted 
from participating in any business of the authority by virtue of its Code of 

25



Conduct, the above requirement for the quorum to include at least one 
independent member shall not apply. 

 
4. FUNCTIONS AND ROLE  
 
 The Standards Committee will have the following functions and roles in 

respect of the District Council and its members and town and parish councils 
and their members - 

 
 promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by members; 
 assisting members and co-opted members to observe their authority's 

code of conduct; 
 advising the Council on the adoption or revision of a Members' Code 

of Conduct and monitoring the operation of the Code; 
 advising, training or arranging to train members and co-opted 

members on matters relating to the Code; 
 granting dispensations to District councillors and co-opted members 

from the requirements relating to interests in the Members' Code of 
Conduct; 

 determining requests from complainants to review decisions not to 
take action or to investigate an alleged breach of the Members’ Code 
of Conduct; 

 consider reports arising from any investigation of alleged misconduct 
and to make a decision on the findings of the Investigator; 

 undertaking hearings into alleged breaches of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct; 

 determining appropriate sanctions or actions in response to breaches 
of the Code of Conduct; and 

 maintain an overview of dispensations granted to parish councillors 
from requirements relating to interests set out in a code of conduct; 

 the exercise of the above in relation to parish councils in 
Huntingdonshire and members of those Parish Councils; and 

 granting and supervising the exemption of certain posts from political 
restrictions under the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007. 

 
 The Standards Committee shall have the following other functions in respect 

of the District Council and its members - 
 

 formulating and recommending to the Council for adoption a Protocol 
for Member/Officer Relations and monitoring the operation of the 
Protocol; and 

 adoption of a Codes of Conduct for Planning and Licensing and 
monitoring the operation of the Codes. 

 
5.  SUB COMMITTEE OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
 The Committee may appoint a Sub Committee comprising 3 Members to – 

 consider reports from  an investigator appointed to investigate an alleged 
breach of the Code of Conduct; 

 to act as a Hearings Panel to consider determinations following an 
investigation on an alleged breach of the code of conduct; and 

 to consider urgent requests for dispensations from District Council Members? 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.71 cm +
Indent at:  1.35 cm

26



   
STANDARDS COMMITTEE    6TH SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
 
 

NEW STANDARDS REGIME - PROGRESS 
(Report by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services  

and Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Members will recall that both the Committee and the Council at  their 

last meetings on 21st June and 4th July 2012 respectively, authorised 
the Head of Legal and Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer to 
put in place arrangements to ensure that the District Council complied 
with the requirements of the Localism Act 2000 in respect of 
“Standards” as soon as possible after the effective date of 1st July 
2012. 

 
1.2 Bearing in mind the timescale imposed by the Government for 

adoption of the new Code and its implications, this report describes 
the action taken thus far by the Monitoring Officer to comply with the 
instructions of the Council and the Committee. 

 
2. PROGRESS TO-DATE 
 
2.1 A new Code of Conduct was adopted by the District Council on 4th 

July 2012.  Guidance Notes accompanied by a new Declaration of 
Interest Form was sent to all District Councillors on 18th July 2012.  
Although pointing out that the timescale for compliance was tight i.e. 
28 days from the date the Code was adopted by the Council, 25 
declarations are still outstanding from District Councillors.  Those 
forms received have been published on the District Council’s website 
in accordance with requirements of the Localism Act. 

 
2.2 Letters were sent to all Town and Parish Councils on 10th and 19th 

July 2012 giving advice on the options available for the adoption of a 
new Code of Conduct, enclosing guidance on disclosable pecuniary 
interests and copies of new Declaration Forms. 

 
2.3 So far and as at 28th August – of the 71 Town and Parish Councils in 

Huntingdonshire, fifteen have adopted the Huntingdonshire Code and 
four have chosen to adopt the version produced by the National 
Association of Local Councils.  Fifty three individual declaration forms 
have been received and 597 still are outstanding.  Alwalton, Tilbrook, 
Upton and Coppingford have responded in full and their register and 
forms are published on the District Council’s website in accordance 
with the Act.  But for some queries, there are a number of other 
Parish Councils close to the point of publication. 

 
2.4 As an illustration of the correspondence sent to Town and Parish 

Councils, copies of the material issued is appended hereto. 
 
2.5 More recently, the Monitoring Officer has issued a further Advice Note 

and Model Application Form to all Town and Parish Clerks in respect 
of the granting of dispensation.  Copies of the advice and Model Form 
are also enclosed. 

Agenda Item 8

27



   
 
2.6 Earlier on the Agenda, the Monitoring Officer described the action he 

had taken to attract candidates to the post of Lead and Deputy 
Independent Persons.  Four applications had been received by the 
closing date of 25th August and following the Committee’s meeting, it 
is the intention to convene a meeting of an Appointment Panel to 
enable a recommendation as to the successful candidate to be 
approved by the Council on 25th September 2012. 

 
2.7 As the introduction of the new standards requirements coincided with 

the Summer holiday season, the Monitoring Officer considered it 
prudent to hold training sessions in abeyance until the Autumn. 

 
3. GENERAL DISPENSATION 
 
3.1 Members may recall that the former Model Code of Conduct 

prescribed specified circumstances when a Member could exclude 
themselves from having to declare a prejudicial interest and leave the 
room when business arose in connection with that interest.  For 
instance, one of these matters related to housing, where the Member 
was a tenant of the Authority provided the functions under discussion 
did not relate to the Member’s tenancy or lease. 

 
3.2 As there are no similar exclusions in the Relevant Authorities 

(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, the Committee 
may consider it appropriate to grant a general dispensation to all 
Members of the Council in specified circumstances. 

 
3.3 Under Chapter 7, Section 33(2) of the Localism Act, a relevant 

authority may “grant a dispensation…….. if, after having had regard 
to all relevant circumstances, the authority –  

 
 (a)  considers that without the dispensation the number of persons 

prohibited from participating in any particular business would be 
so great a proportion of the body transacting the business as to 
impede the transaction of the business; 

 
 (b)  considers that without the dispensation the representation of 

different political groups on the body transacting any particular 
business would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of any 
vote relating to the business; 

 
 (c)  considers that granting dispensation is in the interests of 

persons living in the Authority’s area; 
 
 (d)  if it is an Authority to which Part 1A of the Local Government 

Act 2000 applies and is operating executive arrangements, 
considers that without the dispensation each Member of the 
authority’s executive would be prohibited from participating in 
any particular business to be transacted by the authority’s 
executive, or; 

 
 (e)  considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 

dispensation. 
 
 A dispensation under this Section must specify the period for which it 

has effect, and the period specified may not exceed four years”.  

28



   
3.4. It is proposed that a dispensation be granted to enable Members to 

speak and vote where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest but 
where that interest is one which a member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts would not reasonably regard as so 
significant that it is likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the 
public interest. Such dispensation to include the following specific 
circumstances – 

 
 (i)  setting the Council Tax and budget under the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992; and 
 
 (ii)  setting the allowances, payments or indemnity given to 

Members. 
 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 The Committee is requested to note the action taken so far to 

introduce the new Standards arrangements; and  
 
4.2 The Committee is requested to grant a general dispensation to all 

Members of the Council for the period ending 30th April 2016 to 
enable all District Councillors to speak and vote on matters specified 
in paragraph 3.4. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Localism Act 2011. 
Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 
Contact Officer:  
Christine Deller, Democratic Services Manager 
Tel No:  (01480) 388007. 
 

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



e
-m

a
il to

 T
o
w

n
/P

a
ris

h
 C

le
rk

s

31



                       
T

his page is intentionally left blank 

32



  
C

O
D

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

D
U

C
T

 F
O

R
 M

E
M

B
E

R
S

 
  

In
tro

d
u

ctio
n

 
 H

untingdonshire D
istrict C

ouncil (the A
uthority) has adopted this C

ode of C
onduct pursuant to 

S
ection 27 of the Localism

 A
ct 2011 to prom

ote and m
aintain high standards of behaviour by its 

m
em

bers and co-opted m
em

bers w
henever they are acting in their capacity as a m

em
ber of the 

A
uthority or w

hen they claim
 to act or give the im

pression of acting as a representative of the 
A

uthority. 
 T

his C
ode is based on the principles of selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, 

honesty and leadership (“the N
olan P

rinciples”). 
  1 

A
p

p
licatio

n
 

 T
his C

ode of C
onduct applies to you w

henever you are acting, claim
 to act or give the 

im
pression you are acting in your capacity as a M

em
ber of the A

uthority, including – 
 1.1 

at form
al M

eetings of the A
uthority 

 
1.2 

w
hen acting as a representative of the A

uthority 
 1.3 

in taking any decision as a C
abinet M

em
ber or a W

ard C
ouncillor 

 
1.4 

in discharging your functions as a W
ard C

ouncillor 
 

 
1.5  

w
hen corresponding w

ith the authority other than in a  private capacity 
 

2  
M

eetin
g

 
 In this C

ode “M
eeting” m

eans any m
eeting organised by or on behalf of the A

uthority, 
including :– 

 
2.1  

any m
eeting of the C

ouncil, or a C
om

m
ittee or S

ub-C
om

m
ittee of C

ouncil 
 

2.2  
any m

eeting of the C
abinet and any C

om
m

ittee of the C
abinet 

 
2.3  

at any briefing by O
fficers; and 

 
2.4  

at any site visit to do w
ith the business of the A

uthority 
 

3 
G

en
eral C

o
n

d
u

ct 
 Y

ou m
ust – 

 3.1  
provide leadership to the authority and com

m
unities w

ithin its area, by personal 
exam

ple and  
 

3.2  
respect others and not bully or threaten or attem

pt to bully or threaten any person 

33



 
3.3  

respect the confidentiality of inform
ation w

hich you receive as a M
em

ber by– 
 

3.3.1  
not disclosing confidential inform

ation to third parties unless required by law
 to do so 

or w
here there is a clear and over-riding public interest in doing so; and 

 
3.3.2  

not obstructing third parties’ legal rights of access to inform
ation 

 
3.4  

not conduct yourself in a m
anner w

hich is likely to bring the A
uthority into disrepute 

 
3.5  

use your position as a M
em

ber in the public interest and not for personal advantage  
 

3.6  
com

ply w
ith the A

uthority’s reasonable rules on the use of public resources for 
private and political purposes 
 

3.7  
exercise 

your 
ow

n 
independent 

judgem
ent, 

taking 
decisions 

for 
good 

and 
substantial reasons by– 
 

3.7.1  
attaching 

appropriate 
w

eight 
to 

all 
relevant 

considerations 
including, 

w
here 

appropriate, public opinion and the view
s of political groups; 

 
3.7.2  

paying due regard to the advice of O
fficers, and in particular to the advice of the 

statutory officers, nam
ely the H

ead of P
aid S

ervice, the C
hief F

inance O
fficer and 

the M
onitoring O

fficer; and 
 

3.7.3  
stating the reasons for your decisions w

here those reasons are not otherw
ise 

apparent 
 

3.8  
do nothing that causes the A

uthority to act unlaw
fully. 

 
4  

D
isclo

sab
le P

ecu
n

iary In
terests 

 
4.1  

Y
ou have a disclosable pecuniary interest if it is of a description specified in 

regulations m
ade by the S

ecretary of S
tate and either:  

 
(a) 

it is an interest of yours, or  
(b) 

it is an interest of:  
(i) 

your spouse or civil partner; or 
(ii) 

a person w
ith w

hom
 you are living as husband and w

ife; or  
(iii) 

a person w
ith w

hom
 you are living as if you w

ere civil partners; 
 

and you are aw
are that other person has the interest.  

 
4.2  

Y
ou m

ust - 
 4.2.1  

com
ply w

ith the statutory and the A
uthority’s requirem

ents to register, disclose and 
w

ithdraw
 from

 participating in respect of any m
atter in w

hich you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest. 
 

4.2.2  
ensure that your register of interests is kept up to date and notify the M

onitoring 
O

fficer in w
riting w

ithin 28 days of becom
ing aw

are of any change in respect of your 
disclosable pecuniary interests. 
 

4.2.3  
m

ake a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any disclosable pecuniary 
interest at any m

eeting at w
hich you are present at w

hich an item
 of business w

hich 

34



affects or relates to the subject m
atter of that interest is under consideration, at or 

before the consideration of the item
 of business or as soon as the interest becom

es 
apparent. 

 
 4.2.4 

W
here you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, w

hether the interest is registered 
or not, you m

ust not (unless you have obtained a dispensation from
 the A

uthority’s 
M

onitoring O
fficer) –  

(i) 
 participate, or participate further, in any discussion of the m

atter at the 
m

eeting; or  
(ii) 

rem
ain in the m

eeting room
 w

hilst the m
atter is being debated or participate 

in any vote taken on the m
atter at the m

eeting.  
 

5 
O

th
er In

terests 
 5.1 

In addition to the requirem
ents of P

aragraph 4, if you attend a m
eeting at w

hich any 
item

 of business is to be considered and you are aw
are that you have a “non-

disclosable pecuniary interest or non-pecuniary interest” in that item
, you m

ust m
ake 

verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest at or before the 
consideration of the item

 of business or as soon as the interest becom
es apparent 

 
5.2 

Y
ou have a “non-disclosable pecuniary interest or non-pecuniary interest” in an item

 
of business of your authority w

here – 
 

5.2.1  
a decision in relation to that business m

ight reasonably be regarded as affecting the 
w

ell-being or financial standing of you or a m
em

ber of your fam
ily or a person w

ith 
w

hom
 you have a close association to a greater extent than it w

ould affect the 
m

ajority of the C
ouncil T

ax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the w
ard or electoral 

area for w
hich you have been elected or otherw

ise of the authority’s adm
inistrative 

area, or 
 

5.2.2  
it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests listed in the T

able in the 
A

ppendix to this C
ode, but in respect of a m

em
ber of your fam

ily (other than a 
“relevant person”) or a person w

ith w
hom

 you have a close association 
 

and that interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

6  
G

ifts an
d

 H
o

spitality 
 6.1  

Y
ou m

ust, w
ithin 28 days of receipt, notify the M

onitoring O
fficer in w

riting of any 
gift, benefit or hospitality w

ith a value in excess of £50 w
hich you have accepted as 

a M
em

ber from
 any person or body other than the authority. 

 
6.2  

T
he M

onitoring O
fficer w

ill place your notification on a public register of gifts and 
hospitality. 

  N
O

T
E

: 
M

em
bers m

ust also com
ply w

ith the relevant C
odes and P

rotocols contained in P
art 

5 of the C
onstitution. 

35



A
ppendix

 

 D
isclosable P

ecuniary Interests 
 T

he duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any m
atter in w

hich a m
em

ber 
has a D

isclosable P
ecuniary Interest are set out in C

hapter 7 of the Localism
 A

ct 2011. 
 D

isclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the R
elevant A

uthorities (D
isclosable P

ecuniary 
Interests) R

egulations 2012 as follow
s – 

 Interest 
P

rescribed description 
E

m
ploym

ent, office, trade, profession or 
vacation 

A
ny em

ploym
ent, office, trade, profession or vocation 

carried on for profit or gain. 
 

S
ponsorship 

A
ny paym

ent or provision of any other financial benefit 
(other than from

 the relevant authority) m
ade or 

provided w
ithin the relevant period in respect of any 

expenses incurred by M
 in carrying out duties as a 

m
em

ber, or tow
ards the election expenses of M

.  
T

his includes any paym
ent or financial benefit from

 a 
trade union w

ithin the m
eaning of the T

rade U
nion and 

Labour R
elations (C

onsolidation) A
ct 1992).  

 
C

ontracts 
A

ny contract w
hich is m

ade betw
een the relevant 

person (or a body in w
hich the relevant person has a 

beneficial i nterest) and the relevant authority—
 

(a)  under w
hich goods or services are to be provided 

or w
orks are to be executed; and  

(b)  w
hich has not been fully discharged. 

 
Land 

A
ny beneficial interest in land w

hich is w
ithin the area 

of the relevant authority.  
 

Licences 
A

ny licence (alone or jointly w
ith others) to occupy 

land in the area of the relevant authority for a m
onth or 

longer. 
 

C
orporate tenancies 

A
ny tenancy w

here (to M
’s know

ledge)—
 

(a)  the landlord is the relevant authority; and  
(b) the tenant is a body in w

hich the relevant person 
has a beneficial interest.  
 

S
ecurities 

A
ny beneficial interest in securities of a body w

here—
 

(a)  that body (to M
’s know

ledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; 
and 
(b)  either—

 
 (i)  the total nom

inal value of the securities exceeds 
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or  

36



 (ii)  if the share capital of that body is of m
ore than one 

class, the total nom
inal value of the shares of any one 

class in w
hich the relevant person has a beneficial 

interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 F
or this purpose – 

 
“the A

ct” m
eans the Localism

 A
ct 2011; 

 “body in w
hich the relevant person has a beneficial interest” m

eans a firm
 in w

hich the 
relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of w

hich the relevant person is a director, 
or in the securities of w

hich the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 
 “director” 

includes 
a 

m
em

ber 
of 

the 
com

m
ittee 

of 
m

anagem
ent 

of 
an 

industrial 
and 

provident society; 
 “land” excludes an easem

ent, servitude, interest or right in or over land w
hich does not 

carry w
ith it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly w

ith another) to occupy the land 
or to receive incom

e; 
 “M

” m
eans a m

em
ber of a relevant authority; 

 “m
em

ber” includes a co-opted m
em

ber;  
 “relevant authority” m

eans the authority of w
hich M

 is a m
em

ber; 
 “relevant period” m

eans the period of 12 m
onths ending w

ith the day on w
hich M

 gives a 
notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or 31(7), as the case m

ay be, of the A
ct; 

 “relevant person” m
eans M

 or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of the A
ct; 

 “securities” m
eans  shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 

collective investm
ent schem

e w
ithin the m

eaning of the F
inancial S

ervices and M
arkets A

ct 
2000 and other securities of any description, other than m

oney deposited w
ith a building 

society. 
     

37



Leg
al B

riefin
g

 
L

09-12
29 Ju

n
e 2012  

P
age 1 of 8 

 
N

atio
n

al A
sso

ciatio
n

 o
f L

o
cal C

o
u

n
cils 

T
el: 020 7637 1865 h

 F
ax: 020 7436 7451 h

 e-m
ail: n

alc@
n

alc.g
o

v.u
k h

 w
eb

site: w
w

w
.n

alc.g
o

v.u
k 

 

N
A

L
C

’s tem
p

late co
d

e o
f co

n
d

u
ct fo

r parish
 co

u
n

cils (fin
al 

versio
n

) 
 In

tro
d

u
ctio

n
 

 T
his B

riefing updates L08-12 and it should be read in conjunction w
ith Legal T

opic N
ote 80 dated 

21 June 2012. N
A

LC
’s tem

plate code of conduct has been finalised and is attached.  
 N

A
LC

’s tem
plate code of conduct incorporates a m

em
ber’s new

 m
andatory obligations

 in the 
Localism

 A
ct 2011 (‘the 2011 A

ct’) concerning ’disclosable pecuniary interests’ w
hich com

e into 
force on 1 July 2012.  D

isclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the R
elevant A

uthorities 
(D

isclosable P
ecuniary Interests) R

egulations 2012 (S
I 2012/1464). T

hey are set out in Legal 
B

riefing L10-12. 
  Im

p
o

rtan
t in

fo
rm

atio
n

 (explained in detail in LT
N

 80 and
 Legal B

riefing L10- 12) 
 1. 

T
he code of conduct adopted by a parish council in satisfying its duties in s.51 of the Local 

G
overnm

ent A
ct 2000 ceases to have effect on 1 July 2012 (paragraph 56 of schedule 4 of 

the 2011 A
ct). 

 
2. 

A
n undertaking to com

ply w
ith a code of conduct given by a person under s.52 of the Local 

G
overnm

ent A
ct 2000 or as part of a declaration of acceptance of office in a form

 prescribed 
by order under s.83 of the Local G

overnm
ent A

ct 1972 ceases to have effect w
hen the parish 

council’s existing code ceases to have effect on 1 July 2012
 (paragraph 56 of schedule 4 of 

the 2011 A
ct). 

 
3. 

T
he Localism

 A
ct 2011 (C

om
m

encem
ent N

o.6 and T
ransitional, S

avings and T
ransitional 

P
rovisions) O

rder 2012 (‘the 2012 R
egulations’), brought into force on 7 June 2012,confirm

s :-  
 

 
a parish council m

ust, pursuant to s.27 of the 2011 A
ct, adopt a new

 code of conduct 
w

hich com
plies w

ith the provisions of s. 28 of the 2011 A
ct to

 take effect o
n

 o
r after 1 

Ju
ly 2012.  

 
 

the district/ unitary authority’s M
onitoring O

fficer m
ust prepare a register of interests for 

m
em

bers of parish councils in the principal authority’s area to
 take effect o

n
 o

r after 1 
Ju

ly 2012.  
 4. 

T
he 2012 R

egulations also confirm
 that on 1 July, a m

em
ber of a parish council is at risk of 

prosecution for com
m

itting crim
inal offences in s.34 of the 2011 A

ct if:- 
 

 
he/she, w

ithout a dispensation, participates or votes on a m
atter being considered at a 

m
eeting in w

hich he/she has a ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ (s.31(4) of the 2011 A
ct) or 

 
 

w
ritten notification of such disclosable pecuniary interest has not already been given to the 

M
onitoring O

fficer, and the m
em

ber does not disclose the disclosable pecuniary interest to 
the m

eeting and does not provide w
ritten notification of the interest to the M

onitoring 
O

fficer w
ithin 28 days of the m

eeting (ss.31(2) and (3) of the 2011 A
ct) or 

38



Leg
al B

riefin
g

 
L

09-12
29 Ju

n
e 2012  

P
age 2 of 8 

 
N

atio
n

al A
sso

ciatio
n

 o
f L

o
cal C

o
u

n
cils 

T
el: 020 7637 1865 h

 F
ax: 020 7436 7451 h

 e-m
ail: n

alc@
n

alc.g
o

v.u
k h

 w
eb

site: w
w

w
.n

alc.g
o

v.u
k 

 

 
 

he/she know
ingly or recklessly provides false or m

isleading inform
ation about the above 

(s.34(2) of the 2011 A
ct).  

  A
d

vice  
 A

 parish council has a duty to adopt a new
 code of conduct. 

 A
fter 6 June 2012, a parish council m

ust adopt a new
 code of conduct (w

hich m
ay or m

ay not be 
based on the N

A
LC

 tem
plate code of conduct) to take effect on 1 July 2012 or as soon as 

possible 
thereafter. 

 
A

 
m

em
ber’s 

m
andatory 

obligations 
relating 

to 
prescribed 

disclosable 
pecuniary interests are incorporated in the N

A
LC

 tem
plate code of conduct. If a parish council 

adopts the N
A

LC
 tem

plate, its m
em

bers are also required to register disclosable pecuniary 
interests w

ithin 28 days of adoption of the code. 
 F

or the period that a parish council has no code of conduct (because its code ceased to have 
effect on 1 July 2012 and it has not resolved to adopt a new

 code of conduct), m
em

bers of the 
parish council 

are 
still 

subject 
to 

the 
m

andatory 
obligations in the 

2011 A
ct 

in relation to 
disclosable pecuniary interests (sum

m
arised above) from

 1 July 2012. 
  U

sefu
l rem

in
d

ers  
 T

he function of adopting, revising or replacing a code of conduct m
ust be discharged by full 

council (s.28(13) of the 2011 A
ct).  A

 parish council m
ust publicise its adoption (and in future any 

revision or replacem
ent) of a code of conduct in such m

anner as it considers is likely to bring the 
adoption, revision or replacem

ent of the code of conduct to the attention of persons w
ho live in its 

area (s. 28(12)).  
 W

hilst 
m

em
bers 

of 
a 

parish 
council 

m
ay 

provide 
w

ritten 
notification 

of 
interests 

(including 
disclosable pecuniary interests) to the M

onitoring O
fficer, m

ost M
onitoring O

fficers are likely to 
prepare 

a 
standard 

register 
of 

interests form
 for m

em
bers 

of 
parish 

councils 
to 

com
plete. 

M
em

bers of parish councils should liaise directly w
ith the M

onitoring O
fficer about providing 

w
ritten notifications about their interests. 

  T
h

is b
riefin

g
 w

as issu
ed

 b
y M

eera T
h

arm
arajah

, S
o

licito
r an

d
 H

ead o
f L

eg
al S

ervices 
 

 N
A

L
C

 2012 

39



Leg
al B

riefin
g

 
L

09-12 
29 Ju

n
e 2012  

P
age 3 of 8 

 
N

atio
n

al A
sso

ciatio
n

 o
f L

o
cal C

o
u

n
cils 

T
el: 020 7637 1865 h

 F
ax: 020 7436 7451 h

 e-m
ail: n

alc@
n

alc.g
o

v.u
k h

 w
eb

site: w
w

w
.n

alc.g
o

v.u
k 

 

F
IN

A
L

 

N
A

L
C

 tem
p

late co
d

e o
f co

n
d

u
ct fo

r p
arish

 co
u

n
cils 

 In
tro

d
u

ctio
n

 

 P
ursuant 

to 
section 

27 
of 

the 
Localism

 
A

ct 
2011, 

X
 

[P
arish/T

ow
n/V

illage/ 

C
om

m
unity/N

eighbourhood] C
ouncil (‘the C

ouncil’) has adopted this C
ode of C

onduct to 

prom
ote 

and 
m

aintain 
high 

standards 
of 

behaviour 
by 

its 
m

em
bers 

and 
co-opted 

m
em

bers w
henever they conduct the business of the C

ouncil, including the business of 

the office to w
hich they w

ere elected or appointed, or w
hen they claim

 to act or give the 

im
pression of acting as a representative of the C

ouncil.  

 T
his C

ode of C
onduct is based on the principles of selflessness, integrity, objectivity, 

accountability, openness, honesty, and leadership. 

 D
efin

itio
n

s 

 F
or the purposes of this C

ode, a ‘co-opted m
em

ber’ is a person w
ho is not a m

em
ber of 

the C
ouncil but w

ho is either a m
em

ber of any com
m

ittee or sub-com
m

ittee of the 

C
ouncil, or a m

em
ber of, and represents the C

ouncil on any joint com
m

ittee or joint sub-

com
m

ittee of the C
ouncil, and w

ho is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be 

decided at any m
eeting of that com

m
ittee or sub-com

m
ittee.  

 F
or the purposes of this C

ode, a ‘m
eeting’ is a m

eeting of the C
ouncil, any of its 

com
m

ittees, sub-com
m

ittees, joint com
m

ittees or joint sub-com
m

ittees.  

 F
or the purposes of this C

ode, and unless otherw
ise expressed, a reference to a m

em
ber 

of the C
ouncil includes a co-opted m

em
ber of the C

ouncil. 

 

40



Leg
al B

riefin
g

 
L

09-12 
29 Ju

n
e 2012  

P
age 4 of 8 

 
N

atio
n

al A
sso

ciatio
n

 o
f L

o
cal C

o
u

n
cils 

T
el: 020 7637 1865 h

 F
ax: 020 7436 7451 h

 e-m
ail: n

alc@
n

alc.g
o

v.u
k h

 w
eb

site: w
w

w
.n

alc.g
o

v.u
k 

 

M
em

b
er o

b
lig

atio
n

s 

 W
hen a m

em
ber of the C

ouncil acts, claim
s to act or gives the im

pression of acting as a 

representative of the C
ouncil, he/she has the follow

ing obligations. 

 1. 
H

e/she shall behave in such a w
ay that a reasonable person w

ould regard as 

respectful. 

 2. 
H

e/she shall not act in a w
ay w

hich a reasonable person w
ould regard as bullying or 

intim
idatory.  

 3. 
H

e/she shall not seek to im
properly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any 

person. 

 4. 
H

e/she shall use the resources of the C
ouncil in accordance w

ith its requirem
ents.  

 5. 
H

e/she shall not disclose inform
ation w

hich is confidential or w
here disclosure is 

prohibited by law
. 

 R
eg

istration
 o

f in
terests 

 6. 
W

ithin 28 days of this C
ode being adopted by the C

ouncil, or the m
em

ber’s election or 

the co-opted m
em

ber’s appointm
ent (w

here that is later), he/she shall register w
ith the 

M
onitoring O

fficer the interests w
hich fall w

ithin the categories set out in A
ppendices A

 

and B
.  

 7. 
U

pon the re-election of a m
em

ber or the re-appointm
ent of a co-opted m

em
ber, 

he/she shall w
ithin 28 days re-register w

ith the M
onitoring O

fficer any interests in 

A
ppendices A

 and B
.  

 

41



Leg
al B

riefin
g

 
L

09-12 
29 Ju

n
e 2012  

P
age 5 of 8 

 
N

atio
n

al A
sso

ciatio
n

 o
f L

o
cal C

o
u

n
cils 

T
el: 020 7637 1865 h

 F
ax: 020 7436 7451 h

 e-m
ail: n

alc@
n

alc.g
o

v.u
k h

 w
eb

site: w
w

w
.n

alc.g
o

v.u
k 

 

8. 
A

 m
em

ber shall register w
ith the M

onitoring O
fficer any change to interests or new

 

interests in A
ppendices A

 and B
 w

ithin 28 days of becom
ing aw

are of it. 

 9. 
A

 m
em

ber need only declare the existence but not the details of any interest w
hich the 

M
onitoring O

fficer agrees is a ‘sensitive interest’.  A
 sensitive interest is one w

hich, if 

disclosed on a public register, could lead the m
em

ber or a person connected w
ith the 

m
em

ber to be subject to violence or intim
idation. 

 D
eclaratio

n
 o

f in
terests at m

eetin
g

s 

 10. 
W

here a m
atter arises at a m

eeting w
hich relates to an interest in A

ppendix A
 the 

m
em

ber shall not participate in a discussion or vote on the m
atter. H

e/she only has 

to declare w
hat his/her interest is if it is not already entered in the m

em
ber’s register 

of interests or if he/she has not notified the M
onitoring O

fficer of it. 

 11. 
W

here a m
atter arises at a m

eeting w
hich relates to an interest in A

ppendix A
 w

hich 

is a sensitive interest, the m
em

ber shall not participate in a discussion or vote on the 

m
atter. If it is a sensitive interest w

hich has not already been disclosed to the 

M
onitoring O

fficer, the m
em

ber shall disclose he/she has an interest but not the 

nature of it.  

 

12. 
W

here a m
atter arises at a m

eeting w
hich relates to an interest in A

ppendix B
, the 

m
em

ber shall not vote on the m
atter.  H

e/she m
ay speak on the m

atter only if 

m
em

bers of the public are also allow
ed to speak at the m

eeting.  

 13. 
A

 m
em

ber only has to declare his/her interest in A
ppendix B

 if it is not already 

entered in his/her register of interests or he/she has not notified the M
onitoring 

O
fficer of it or if he/she speaks on the m

atter. If he/she holds an interest in A
ppendix 

B
 w

hich is a sensitive interest not already disclosed to the M
onitoring O

fficer, he/she 

shall declare the interest but not the nature of the interest. 

 

42



Leg
al B

riefin
g

 
L

09-12 
29 Ju

n
e 2012  

P
age 6 of 8 

 
N

atio
n

al A
sso

ciatio
n

 o
f L

o
cal C

o
u

n
cils 

T
el: 020 7637 1865 h

 F
ax: 020 7436 7451 h

 e-m
ail: n

alc@
n

alc.g
o

v.u
k h

 w
eb

site: w
w

w
.n

alc.g
o

v.u
k 

 

14. 
W

here a m
atter arises at a m

eeting w
hich relates to a financial interest of a friend, 

relative or close associate (other than an interest in A
ppendix A

), the m
em

ber shall 

disclose the nature of the interest and not vote on the m
atter. H

e/she m
ay speak on 

the m
atter only if m

em
bers of the public are also allow

ed to speak at the m
eeting.  If 

it is a ‘sensitive interest’ the m
em

ber shall declare the interest but not the nature of 

the interest. 

 D
isp

en
satio

n
s 

 15. 
O

n a w
ritten request m

ade to the C
ouncil’s proper officer, the C

ouncil m
ay gran

t a 

m
em

ber a dispensation to participate in a discussion and vote on a m
atter at a 

m
eeting even if he/she has an interest in A

ppendices A
 and B

 if the C
ouncil believes 

that the num
ber of m

em
bers otherw

ise prohibited from
 taking part in the m

eeting 

w
ould 

im
pede 

the 
transaction 

of 
the 

business; 
or 

it 
is 

in 
the 

interests 
of 

the 

inhabitants in the C
ouncil’s area to allow

 the m
em

ber to take part or it is otherw
ise 

appropriate to grant a dispensation. 

    

43



Leg
al B

riefin
g

 
L

09-12 
29 Ju

n
e 2012  

P
age 7 of 8 

 
N

atio
n

al A
sso

ciatio
n

 o
f L

o
cal C

o
u

n
cils 

T
el: 020 7637 1865 h

 F
ax: 020 7436 7451 h

 e-m
ail: n

alc@
n

alc.g
o

v.u
k h

 w
eb

site: w
w

w
.n

alc.g
o

v.u
k 

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix A

  

Interests described in the table below
. 

S
u

b
ject 

D
escrip

tio
n

 

E
m

ploym
ent, office, 

trade, profession or 
vocation 

A
ny em

ploym
ent, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

S
ponsorship 

A
ny paym

ent or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from
 the C

ouncil) 
m

ade to the m
em

ber during the 12 m
onth period ending on the latest date referred to 

in paragraph 6 above for expenses incurred by him
/her in carrying out his/her duties 

as a m
em

ber, or tow
ards his/her election expenses. 

 
T

his includes any paym
ent or financial benefit from

 a trade union w
ithin the m

eaning 
of the T

rade U
nion and Labour R

elations (C
onsolidation) A

ct 1992. 

C
ontracts 

A
ny contract m

ade betw
een the m

em
ber or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 

person w
ith w

hom
 the m

em
ber is living as if they w

ere spouses/civil partners (or a firm
 

in w
hich such person is a partner , or an incorporated body of w

hich such person is a 
director * or a body that such person has a beneficial interest in the securities of*) and 
the C

ouncil —
 

 
(a) under w

hich goods or services are to be provided or w
orks are to be executed; and 

 
(b) w

hich has not been fully discharged. 

Land 
A

ny beneficial interest in land w
hich is w

ithin the area of the C
ouncil. 

‘Land’ excludes an easem
ent, servitude, interest or right in or over land w

hich does 
not give the m

em
ber or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person w

ith w
hom

 the 
m

em
ber is living as if they w

ere spouses/civil partners (alone or jointly w
ith another) a 

right to occupy or to receive incom
e. 

Licences 
A

ny licence (alone or jointly w
ith others) to occupy land in the area of the C

ouncil for a 
m

onth or longer. 

C
orporate tenancies 

A
ny tenancy w

here (to the m
em

ber’s know
ledge)—

 

 
(a) the landlord is the C

ouncil; and 

 
(b) the tenant is a body that the m

em
ber, or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 

person w
ith w

hom
 the m

em
ber is living as if they w

ere spouses/civil partners is a 
partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of.  

S
ecurities 

A
ny beneficial interest in securities* of a body w

here—
 

 

 
(a) that body (to the m

em
ber’s know

ledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the C

ouncil; and 

 
(b) either—

 

 
(i) the total nom

inal value of the securities* exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of m

ore than one class, the total nom
inal value of 

the shares of any one class in w
hich the m

em
ber, or his/her spouse or civil partner or 

the person w
ith w

hom
 the m

em
ber is living as if they w

ere spouses/civil partners has 
a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

*’director’ includes a m
em

ber of the com
m

ittee of m
anagem

ent of an industrial and provident society. 

*’securities’ m
eans shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investm

ent schem
e 

w
ithin the m

eaning of the F
inancial S

ervices and M
arkets A

ct 2000 and other securities of any description, other than 

m
oney deposited w

ith a building society. 

44



Leg
al B

riefin
g

 
L

09-12
29 Ju

n
e 2012  

P
age 8 of 8 

 
N

atio
n

al A
sso

ciatio
n

 o
f L

o
cal C

o
u

n
cils 

T
el: 020 7637 1865 h

 F
ax: 020 7436 7451 h

 e-m
ail: n

alc@
n

alc.g
o

v.u
k h

 w
eb

site: w
w

w
.n

alc.g
o

v.u
k 

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix B

  

A
n interest w

hich relates to or is likely to affect: 

 

(i) 
any 

body 
of 

w
hich 

the 
m

em
ber 

is 
in 

a 
position 

of 
general 

control 
or 

m
anagem

ent and to w
hich he/she is appointed or nom

inated by the C
ouncil; 

 

(ii) 
any body—

 

(a) 
exercising functions of a public nature; 

(b) 
directed to charitable purposes; or 

(c) 
one of w

hose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion 

or policy (including any political party or trade union)  

of w
hich the m

em
ber of the C

ouncil is a m
em

ber or in a position of general 

control or m
anagem

ent; 

 

(iii) 
any gifts or hospitality w

orth m
ore than an estim

ated value of £50 w
hich the 

m
em

ber has received by virtue of his or her office. 

  
 N

A
L

C
 2012 

45



                       
T

his page is intentionally left blank 

46



e-m
ail to T

ow
n/P

arish C
lerks

19th July 2012

47



                       
T

his page is intentionally left blank 

48



Form
 A

 - H
untingdonshire Code  

_________________________________________________________ TO
W

N
/PA

RISH
 CO

U
N

CIL
 

  

REG
ISTER O

F M
EM

BERS' IN
TERESTS

 

 

TH
E RELEV

A
N

T A
U

TH
O

RITIES (D
ISCLO

SA
BLE PECU

N
IA

RY IN
TERESTS) 

REG
U

LA
TIO

N
S 2012 

  

Explanatory N
otes 

 1.  
This form

 m
ust be com

pleted and returned w
ithin 28 days of the adoption of the Code of Conduct or w

ithin 28 days of 
your election or appointm

ent to office.  
2. 

You m
ust w

ithin 28 days of becom
ing aw

are of any changes to the interests specified above provide w
ritten 

notification to the M
onitoring O

fficer of that change. 
3. 

The Register of Interests is m
aintained by the M

onitoring O
fficer in accordance w

ith Section 29 of the Localism
 Act 

2011 and w
ill be published on the Council’s w

ebsite. 
4. 

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest and you consider that disclosure of that interest could lead to you or any 
person connected w

ith you, being subject to violence or intim
idation, you m

ay apply to the Council’s M
onitoring O

fficer 
to exclude details of the interest from

 the published register, (but it m
ay state that the M

em
ber has an interest, the 

details of w
hich are being w

ithheld). 
5. 

In certain circum
stances, failure to register or to declare a “declarable pecuniary interest” is a crim

inal offence.  So is 
speaking and voting, unless you have a dispensation.  This is punishable on conviction by a fine of up to £5,000 and/or 
disqualification as a councillor for up to five years.  

  
I _____________________________________________________________ (full nam

e in block capitals) 
 a M

em
ber 1 of ________________________________________________________ Tow

n/Parish Council 
(the 'Council') give notice that I have set out below

 under the appropriate headings m
y disclosable 

pecuniary interests, and those of m
y Partner 2 that are know

n to m
e and w

hich are required to be 
declared under the Relevant A

uthorities (D
isclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, and in 

accordance w
ith the M

em
bers' Code of Conduct adopted by the Council. 

  1. 
A

ny em
ploym

ent, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain 
 N

ote: 
Please provide the nam

e and address of any em
ployer or business and your job title/description. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

                                                 
1  

'M
em

ber' includes a co-opted M
em

ber. 
2  

'Partner' includes your spouse, civil partner or person w
ith w

hom
 you are living as if they w

ere your spouse or civil 
partner. 

49



 2. 
Sponsorship 
A

ny paym
ent or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from

 the Council) m
ade or 

provided w
ithin the relevant period

3
in respect of any expenses incurred in carrying out duties as a 

M
em

ber or tow
ards election expenses.  This includes any paym

ent or financial benefit from
 a trade 

union w
ithin the m

eaning of the Trade U
nion and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

3. 
Contracts 
A

ny contract w
hich is m

ade betw
een - 

 
you or your Partner; or 

 
a firm

 in w
hich either you or your Partner is a partner; or 

 
a body corporate (including a m

em
ber of the com

m
ittee of m

anagem
ent of an Industrial and 

Provident Society) of w
hich you or your Partner is a director; or 

 
a body corporate in w

hich you or your Partner has a beneficial interest in its securities
4 

and the Council - 
(a) 

under w
hich goods or services are to be provided or w

orks are to be executed; and 
(b) 

w
hich has not been fully discharged. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

                                                 
3  

'relevant period' m
eans the period of 12 m

onths ending w
ith the day on w

hich you give notice of its existence. 
4  

'securities' m
eans shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investm

ent schem
e w

ithin 
the m

eaning of the Financial Services and M
arkets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than m

oney 
deposited w

ith a building society. 
50



 4. 
Land

5 
A

ny land in w
hich you or your Partner has a beneficial interest w

hich is w
ithin the area of the 

Council.
 

 N
otes: 

Please provide address or other description sufficient to identify the location.   
 

 
 

It should also include your hom
e address. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

5. 
Licences 
A

ny licence (alone or jointly w
ith others) to occupy land in the area of the Council for a m

onth or 
longer. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

6. 
Corporate Tenancies  
A

ny tenancies w
here (to your know

ledge) - 
(a) 

the landlord is the Council; and 
(b)  

the tenant is a body in w
hich you/your Partner has a beneficial interest. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

                                                 
5   

'land' excludes an easem
ent, servitude, interest or right in or over land w

hich does not carry w
ith it a right for the 

relevant person (alone or jointly w
ith another) to occupy the land or to receive incom

e. 
 

51



 7. 
Securities 
A

ny beneficial interest you/your Partner has in securitie s (see Footnote 4) of a body w
here - 

(a)
that body (to your know

ledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the Council; and
(b) 

either 
(i) the total nom

inal value
6 of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 

issued share capital of that body; or 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of m

ore than one class, the total nom
inal value

 ( see 

Footnote 6) of the shares of any one class in w
hich you/your Partner has a beneficial interest 

exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

8. 
D

isclosure of G
ifts and H

ospitality 

You m
ust reveal the nam

es of any person from
 w

hom
 you have received a gift or hospitality w

ith 
an estim

ated value of at least £50, w
hich you have received in your capacity as a Councillor. 

 
D

ate of receipt of 
G

ift/H
ospitality 

N
am

e of D
onor 

N
ature and estim

ated value of 
G

ift/H
ospitality 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
M

em
ber's Signature: 

____________________________________________________________ 

 
D

ate: 
____________________________________________________________ 

 A
fter com

pletion, please sign and return to your Clerk  w
ho has been requested to forw

ard them
 on -  

 
by e-m

ail to codeofconduct@
huntingdonshire.gov.uk; or  

 
by post addressed to the M

onitoring O
fficer, H

untingdonshire D
istrict Council,  Pathfinder H

ouse, 
St M

ary's Street, H
untingdon, PE29 3TN

 
  

Z:\Standards\Code O
f Conduct\Code O

f Conduct 2012\D
istrict\Form

s\D
isclosable Pecuniary Interests 2012 Form

.D
ocx 

                                                 
6  

‘n
o

m
in

al valu
e

’ m
eans the am

ount show
n on the share certificate; not the m

arket value. 
52



Form
 B - N

A
LC Code  

 _________________________________________________________ TO
W

N
/PA

RISH
 CO

U
N

CIL
 

  

REG
ISTER O

F M
EM

BERS' IN
TERESTS

 

 

TH
E RELEV

A
N

T A
U

TH
O

RITIES (D
ISCLO

SA
BLE PECU

N
IA

RY IN
TERESTS) 

REG
U

LA
TIO

N
S 2012 

  

Explanatory N
otes 

 1.  
This form

 m
ust be com

pleted and returned w
ithin 28 days of the adoption of the Code of Conduct or w

ithin 28 days of 
your election or appointm

ent to office.  
2. 

You m
ust w

ithin 28 days of becom
ing aw

are of any changes to the interests specified above provide w
ritten 

notification to the M
onitoring O

fficer of that change. 
3. 

The Register of Interests is m
aintained by the M

onitoring O
fficer in accordance w

ith Section 29 of the Localism
 Act 

2011 and w
ill be published on the Council’s w

ebsite. 
4. 

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest and you consider that disclosure of that interest could lead to you or any 
person connected w

ith you, being subject to violence or intim
idation, you m

ay apply to the Council’s M
onitoring O

fficer 
to exclude details of the interest from

 the published register, (but it m
ay state that the M

em
ber has an interest, the 

details of w
hich are being w

ithheld). 
5. 

In certain circum
stances, failure to register or to declare a “declarable pecuniary interest” is a crim

inal offence.  So is 
speaking and voting, unless you have a dispensation.  This is punishable on conviction by a fine of up to £5,000 and/or 
disqualification as a councillor for up to five years.  

  
I ______________________________________________________________ (full nam

e in block capitals 
 a M

em
ber 1 of ________________________________________________________ Tow

n/Parish Council 
(the 'Council') give notice that I have set out below

 under the appropriate headings m
y disclosable 

pecuniary interests, and those of m
y Partner 2 that are know

n to m
e and w

hich are required to be 
declared under the Relevant A

uthorities (D
isclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, and in 

accordance w
ith the M

em
bers' Code of Conduct adopted by the Council. 

  1. 
A

ny em
ploym

ent, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain 
 N

ote: 
Please provide the nam

e and address of any em
ployer or business and your job title/description. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

                                                 
1  

'M
em

ber' includes a co-opted M
em

ber. 
2  

'Partner' includes your spouse, civil partner or person w
ith w

hom
 you are living as if they w

ere your spouse or civil 
partner. 

53



  2. 
Sponsorship 
A

ny paym
ent or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from

 the Council) m
ade or 

provided w
ithin the relevant period

3
in respect of any expenses incurred in carrying out duties as a 

M
em

ber or tow
ards election expenses.  This includes any paym

ent or financial benefit from
 a trade 

union w
ithin the m

eaning of the Trade U
nion and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

3. 
Contracts 
A

ny contract w
hich is m

ade betw
een - 

 
you or your Partner; or 

 
a firm

 in w
hich either you or your Partner is a partner; or 

 
a body corporate (including a m

em
ber of the com

m
ittee of m

anagem
ent of an Industrial and 

Provident Society) of w
hich you or your Partner is a director; or 

 
a body corporate in w

hich you or your Partner has a beneficial interest in its securities
4 

and the Council - 
(a) 

under w
hich goods or services are to be provided or w

orks are to be executed; and 
(b) 

w
hich has not been fully discharged. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

                                                 
3  

'relevant period' m
eans the period of 12 m

onths ending w
ith the day on w

hich you give notice of its existence. 
4  

'securities' m
eans shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investm

ent schem
e w

ithin 
the m

eaning of the Financial Services and M
arkets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than m

oney 
deposited w

ith a building society. 

54



  4. 
Land

5 
A

ny land in w
hich you or your Partner has a beneficial interest w

hich is w
ithin the area of the 

Council.
 

 N
otes: 

Please provide address or other description sufficient to identify the location.   
 

 
 

It should also include your hom
e address. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

5. 
Licences 
A

ny licence (alone or jointly w
ith others) to occupy land in the area of the Council for a m

onth or 
longer. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

6. 
Corporate Tenancies  
A

ny tenancies w
here (to your know

ledge) - 
(a) 

the landlord is the Council; and 
(b)  

the tenant is a body in w
hich you/your Partner has a beneficial interest. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
                                                 
5   

'land' excludes an easem
ent, servitude, interest or right in or over land w

hich does not carry w
ith it a right for the 

relevant person (alone or jointly w
ith another) to occupy the land or to receive incom

e. 
 

55



  7. 
Securities 
A

ny beneficial interest you/your Partner has in securities (see Footnote 4) of a body w
here - 

(a) 
that body (to your know

ledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the Council; and 
(b) 

either 
(i) the total nom

inal value
6 of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 

issued share capital of that body; or 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of m

ore than one class, the total nom
inal value

 ( see 

Footnote 6) of the shares of any one class in w
hich you/your Partner has a beneficial interest 

exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
M

yself 
Partner 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

8. 
D

isclosure of G
ifts and H

ospitality 

You m
ust reveal the nam

es of any person from
 w

hom
 you have received a gift or hospitality w

ith 
an estim

ated value of at least £50, w
hich you have received in your capacity as a Councillor. 

 
D

ate of receipt of 
G

ift/H
ospitality 

N
am

e of D
onor 

N
ature and estim

ated value of 
G

ift/H
ospitality 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                 
6  

‘n
o

m
in

al valu
e

’ m
eans the am

ount show
n on the share certificate; not the m

arket value. 

56



  9. 
Schedule B Interests 

 
I am

 a m
em

ber of, or I am
 in a position of general control or m

anagem
ent in the follow

ing 
body/bodies -

 
(a) 

to w
hich I have been appointed or nom

inated by the Council 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(b) 

exercising functions of a public nature (e.g. school governing body or another Council) 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(c) 

directed to charitable purposes 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(d) 

one of w
hose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including 

any political party or trade union) 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

em
ber's Signature: 

____________________________________________________________ 

 
D

ate: 
____________________________________________________________ 

 A
fter com

pletion, please sign and return to your Clerk w
ho has been requested to forw

ard them
 on -  

 
by e-m

ail to codeofconduct@
huntingdonshire.gov.uk; or  

 
by post addressed to the M

onitoring O
fficer, H

untingdonshire D
istrict Council,  Pathfinder H

ouse, 
St M

ary's Street, H
untingdon, PE29 3TN

 
   

Z:\Standards\Code of Conduct\Code of Conduct 2012\Parish\Form
s\Form

 B T&
PC (N

ALC)  D
isclosable Pecuniary Interests 2012 Form

.docx 

57



Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

 
BRIEFIN

G
 N

O
TE FO

R M
EM

BERS 
D

ISCLO
SA

BLE PECU
N

IA
RY IN

TERESTS 
  1. 

IN
TRO

D
U

CTIO
N

 
  

M
em

bers w
ill be aw

are that as from
 1 July, 2012 the old standards regim

e w
as 

abolished by the Localism
 A

ct 2011 and that every Council w
as required to adopt a 

new
 Code.  The Council did this at its m

eeting on 4 July 2012.  As a consequence of 
these 

changes, 
there 

are 
new

 
requirem

ents 
regarding 

the 
registering 

and 
declaration of interests, details of w

hich are set out below
.  Please note that these 

changes have im
m

ediate effect. 
 

SU
M

M
A

RY O
F KEY CH

A
N

G
ES 

 The follow
ing key changes take effect follow

ing the adoption of the new
 Code: 

 § 
Personal and prejudicial interests are abolished and 

are replaced w
ith 

“D
isclosable Pecuniary Interests” (D

PIs). 
§ 

D
PIs are broadly equivalent to previous “prejudicial interests”, but now

 also 
extend to interests held by a M

em
ber’s spouse or civil partner. 

§ 
M

em
bers m

ust register D
PIs w

ithin 28 days of election and m
ust notify the 

M
onitoring O

fficer of any changes w
ithin 28 days. 

§ 
If a M

em
ber has a D

PI in a m
atter under consideration at a m

eeting, they 
m

ay not participate in the discussion or vote, unless the M
em

ber has been 
granted a “dispensation”.  

§ 
 If a M

em
ber has a D

PI they should also leave the room
 w

hilst the m
atter is 

under discussion and being voted on. 
§ 

Failure to com
ply w

ith certain rules relating to D
PIs is a crim

inal offence and 
m

ay be punished by a fine of up to £5,000 and/or disqualification for up to 5 
years.  

§ 
 U

nder 
the 

new
 

Code 
certain 

“O
ther 

Interests” 
(sim

ilar 
to 

“personal 
interests” under the previous Code) m

ust be declared at a m
eeting, but 

these do not need to be registered and w
ill not prevent a M

em
ber speaking 

or voting on a m
atter. 

58



Page 2 of 4 
 2. 

FREQ
U

EN
TLY A

SKED
 Q

U
ESTIO

N
S 

  
W

hat is a “disclosable pecuniary interest”? 
  

D
isclosable pecuniary interests are very sim

ilar to the property and financial 
interests that had to be registered and declared previously and include, your 
em

ploym
ent, property, any contracts you have w

ith the Council etc.  (A com
plete 

list of disclosable pecuniary interests is set out in the Council’s Code of Conduct and 
also listed on the register of interests form

.) 
  

There is, how
ever, O

N
E IM

PO
RTAN

T D
IFFEREN

CE, nam
ely that you now

 need to 
declare, not only your ow

n interests, but also those of: 
 

§ 
Your spouse or civil partner; 

§ 
A

 person w
ith w

hom
 you are living as husband and w

ife; and 
§ 

A
 person w

ith w
hom

 you are living as if you are civil partners.  
  

The need to declare only arises if you are aw
are that your spouse/partner has the 

interest.  
  

W
hat are m

y obligations to register a “disclosable pecuniary interest”? 
  

You need to notify the Council’s M
onitoring O

fficer of all disclosable pecuniary 
interests w

ithin 28 days of adoption of the Code or your election, if later.  
  

You m
ust ensure that your register of interests is kept up to date and notify the 

M
onitoring O

fficer in w
riting w

ithin 28 days of becom
ing aw

are of any change in 
respect of your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

  
H

ow
ever, if you are at a m

eeting that is considering som
ething in w

hich you have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest, and that interest is not registered, you m

ust register 
the interest w

ithin 28 days of the m
eeting. 

  
W

hat are m
y obligations to declare a “disclosable pecuniary interest”? 

  
W

hether or not your disclosable pecuniary interest is registered, you m
ust declare 

the existence and nature of a disclosable pecuniary interest at any m
eeting at w

hich 
you are present w

here an item
 of business, w

hich affects or relates to that interest, 
is under consideration.  You m

ust do this before the consideration of the item
 of 

business, or as soon as the interest becom
es apparent. 

  
W

hat are the consequences of having a “disclosable pecuniary interest” in a 
m

atter? 
  

You m
ay not speak or vote w

hen the m
atter is being considered.  The fact of having 

a disclosable pecuniary interest w
ill alw

ays be a bar to participation, unless you 
obtain a dispensation (see below

).  59



Page 3 of 4 
  

D
o I need to leave the room

 if I have a “disclosable pecuniary interest”? 
  

Yes.  This is required by the adopted Code and the Council’s Constitution. 
  

Is the register of “disclosable pecuniary interests” published? 
  

Yes, there is a legal obligation to m
ake the register available for inspection and to 

publish it on the Council’s w
ebsite.  

  
H

ow
ever, an interest m

ay be exem
pted from

 publication if it is a 
“se

n
sitive 

in
te

re
st”.  An interest is “sensitive” if its disclosure could lead to the M

em
ber, or to 

som
eone connected w

ith them
, being subject to violence or intim

idation.  
  

Responsibility for 
deciding w

hether 
an interest is “sensitive” 

is given to the 
M

onitoring O
fficer. 

  
I have a disclosable pecuniary interest but w

ould like to speak and vote.  W
hat 

should I do? 
  

It 
is possible 

to 
obtain a dispensation 

to speak and/or 
vote 

in a range 
of 

circum
stances, but this w

ill need to be done in advance of the m
eeting in question.  

D
ispensations 

m
ay 

be 
granted 

by 
the 

Standards 
Com

m
ittee 

(or 
in 

certain 
circum

stances, the M
onitoring O

fficer) w
here it considers that: 

 
§ 

w
ithout the dispensation the num

ber of persons prohibited from
 participating 

in any particular business w
ould be so great a proportion of the body 

transacting the business as to im
pede the transaction of the business; 

§ 
w

ithout the dispensation the representation of different political groups on 
the body transacting any particular business w

ould be so upset as to alter the 
likely outcom

e of any vote relating to the business; 
§ 

granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the authority's 
area; 

§ 
w

ithout the dispensation each M
em

ber of the authority's executive w
ould be 

prohibited by section 31(4) from
 participating in any particular business to be 

transacted by the authority's executive; or 
§ 

it is otherw
ise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 

  
Breach of code and sanctions 

  
It is a crim

inal offence to:- 
 

 
fail to notify the M

onitoring O
fficer of any D

isclosable Pecuniary Interest 
w

ithin 28 days of election; 
 

fail to disclose a D
isclosable Pecuniary Interest at a m

eeting even if it is not on 
the register; 

 
fail to notify the M

onitoring O
fficer w

ithin 28 days of a D
isclosable Pecuniary 

Interest that is not on the register that you have disclosed to a m
eeting; 

60



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
participate in any discussion or vote on a m

atter in w
hich you have a 

D
isclosable Pecuniary Interest (w

ithout a dispensation);  
 

know
ingly or recklessly provide inform

ation that is false or m
isleading in 

notifying the M
onitoring O

fficer of a D
isclosable Pecuniary Interest or in 

disclosing such interest to a m
eeting 

 
 

The crim
inal penalties available to a court on conviction are to im

pose a fine not 
exceeding £5000 and disqualification from

 being a Councillor for up to 5 years. 
 

A
lm

ost all other breaches of the Code are not crim
inal and the sanctions available 

in those cases, include censure, but suspension is no longer possible. 
  

A
re any other interests covered by the Code? 

 
Yes, the Council’s Code also covers a type of interest that is sim

ilar to the previous 
“personal interest”. O

ther interests arise w
here:- 

  
 

(i) 
a decision in relation to that business m

ight reasonably be regarded as 
affecting the w

ell-being or financial standing of you or a m
em

ber of your 
fam

ily or a person w
ith w

hom
 you have a close association to a greater extent 

than it w
ould affect the m

ajority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or 
inhabitants of the w

ard or electoral area for w
hich you have been elected or 

otherw
ise of the authority’s adm

inistrative area, or 
 

 
 

(ii)  
it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests listed in the Table in the 
Appendix to the adopted Code, but in respect of a m

em
ber of your fam

ily 
(other than your spouse/civil partner as they w

ould have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest) or a person w

ith w
hom

 you have a close association 
 

 
and that interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

  
W

hat m
ust I do if I have an “O

ther” type Interest? 
  

In the interests of transparency, the Council’s new
 Code requires these “other 

interests” to be declared at m
eetings, but this w

ill not prevent the M
em

ber 
speaking or voting.  Failure to com

ply w
ith these requirem

ents is not a crim
inal 

offence, but is potentially a breach of the Code. 
 3. 

BRIEFIN
G

 SESSIO
N

S 
  

W
e w

ill be arranging one or m
ore briefing sessions for M

em
bers, but please feel 

free to contact m
e or Christine D

eller ((
 01480 388007) if you have any queries or 

need any help in the interim
. 

 Colin M
eadow

croft 
M

onitoring O
fficer and  

H
ead of Legal &

 D
em

ocratic Services 
(

 01480 388021 
Z:\Standards\Code O

f Conduct\Code O
f Conduct 2012\D

istrict\BRIEFIN
G

 N
O

TE FO
R M

EM
BERS.D

oc 

61



e-mail to Town/Parish Clerks
24 August 2012

62



This page is intentionally left blank 

63



1 

 

D
IS

P
E

N
S

A
T

IO
N

S
 P

R
O

C
E

D
U

R
E

 G
U

ID
E

 
  

T
O

W
N

 A
N

D
 P

A
R

IS
H

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

S
 

  1. 
IN

T
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 

  
U

nder the Localism
 A

ct 2011(“the A
ct”), a M

em
ber or C

o-opted M
em

ber w
ho has a 

D
isclosable P

ecuniary Interest in a m
atter w

hich is under consideration, m
ay not 

participate in the consideration of that m
atter unless he/she has first obtained a 

dispensation from
 the ‘relevant authority’.  

 
P

reviously dispensations w
ere issued by the S

tandards C
om

m
ittee of the D

istrict 
C

ouncil, but as T
ow

n/P
arish C

ouncils are defined as a ‘relevant authority’ under the 
A

ct, they are now
 responsible for determ

ining requests for a dispensation by a 
T

ow
n/P

arish C
ouncillor under S

ection 33. 
  

T
his guide explains - 

 
(a) 

the purpose and effect of dispensations; 
 

(b) 
the procedure for requesting dispensations; 

 
(c) 

the criteria w
hich are applied in determ

ining dispensation requests; 
 

(d) 
the term

s of dispensations; 
 (e) 

general dispensations. 
 2. 

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 A

N
D

 E
F

F
E

C
T

 O
F

 D
IS

P
E

N
S

A
T

IO
N

S
 

  
In certain circum

stances C
ouncillors m

ay be granted a dispensation w
hich enables 

them
 to take part in C

ouncil business w
here this w

ould otherw
ise be prohibited 

because they have a D
isclosable P

ecuniary Interest.  P
rovided C

ouncillors act w
ithin 

the term
s of their dispensation there is deem

ed to be no breach of the C
ode of 

C
onduct or the law

. 
  

D
ispensations m

ay allow
 the C

ouncillor to participate in any - 
 

(a) 
discussion of the m

atter at the m
eeting(s); and/or 

 
(b) 

vote taken on the m
atter at the m

eeting(s). 
  

If a dispensation is granted, the C
ouncillor m

ay rem
ain in the room

 w
here the m

eeting 
considering the business is being held. 

 
P

lease n
o

te: If a T
o

w
n

/P
arish

 C
o

u
n

cillo
r p

articip
ates in

 a m
eetin

g
 w

h
ere h

e/sh
e 

h
as a D

isclo
sab

le P
ecu

n
iary In

terest an
d

 h
e/sh

e d
o

es n
o

t h
ave a 

d
isp

en
satio

n
, th

ey m
ay b

e co
m

m
ittin

g
 a crim

in
al o

ffen
ce u

n
d

er 
S

ectio
n

 34 o
f th

e L
o

calism
 A

ct 2011. 
 3. 

P
R

O
C

E
D

U
R

E
 F

O
R

 M
A

K
IN

G
 R

E
Q

U
E

S
T

S
 

  
A

ny C
ouncillor w

ho w
ishes to apply for a dispensation m

ust com
plete a D

ispensation 
R

equest F
orm

 and subm
it it to the P

roper O
fficer of the T

ow
n/P

arish C
ouncil (i.e. the 

64



2 

 

T
ow

n/P
arish 

C
lerk) 

as 
soon 

as 
possible 

before 
the 

m
eeting 

for 
w

hich 
the 

dispensation is required.  
 4. 

C
O

N
S

ID
E

R
A

T
IO

N
 B

Y
 T

H
E

 T
O

W
N

/P
A

R
IS

H
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

  
T

he T
ow

n/P
arish C

ouncil can either delegate authority to the T
ow

n/P
arish C

lerk to 
grant 

dispensations, 
or 

reserve 
such 

decisions 
for 

the 
T

ow
n/P

arish 
C

ouncil.  
A

lternatively the C
ouncil m

ight w
ish to delegate the pow

er to grant dispensations for 
certain grounds to the C

lerk e.g. ground (a) below
, w

hich is fairly objective, but deal 
w

ith other applications through a m
eeting of the C

ouncil, or possibly by delegating to 
the C

lerk, after consultation w
ith the C

hairm
an of the C

ouncil, or V
ice-C

hairm
an in 

cases of conflict of interest.   
  

A
 dispensation m

ay be granted to a C
ouncillor w

ho has a D
isclosable P

ecuniary 
Interest to participate in any discussion of a m

atter at a m
eeting and/or to participate 

in any vote on the m
atter if it is considered that - 

 
(a) 

so m
any M

em
bers of the C

ouncil/C
om

m
ittee have D

isclosable P
ecuniary 

Interests that it w
ould im

pede the transaction of the business (i.e. the m
eeting 

w
ould be inquorate); or 

 
(b) 

w
ithout the dispensation the representation of different political groups on the 

C
ouncil (if these exist) w

ould be so upset as to alter the likely outcom
e of any 

particular vote; 
 

(c) 
 the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the authority’s area; or 

 (d) 
it is otherw

ise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 
 

 
If the adopted C

ode prevents a C
ouncillor speaking or voting w

here they have an 
interest other than a D

isclosable P
ecuniary Interest, the T

ow
n/P

arish C
ouncil m

ay 
w

ish to extend the provisions of the above paragraph to apply in the sam
e w

ay to 
those interests, but this is at the discretion of the C

ouncil. 
  

T
he T

ow
n/P

arish C
lerk should form

ally notify the C
ouncillor of their decision and 

reasons in w
riting at the earliest opportunity. 

 5. 
C

R
IT

E
R

IA
 F

O
R

 D
E

T
E

R
M

IN
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 R

E
Q

U
E

S
T

S
 

  
T

he follow
ing are exam

ples of criteria that m
ay be appropriate in determ

ining a 
request for a dispensation, but the C

ouncil w
ill need to determ

ine the factors they 
consider relevant. - 

 
(a) 

the nature of the C
ouncillor’s prejudicial interest, e.g. is it trivial or rem

ote? 
 

(b) 
the 

need 
to 

m
aintain 

public 
confidence 

in 
the 

conduct 
of 

the 
C

ouncil’s 
business; 

 
(c) 

in certain circum
stances, the possible outcom

e of the proposed vote; 
 

(d)  
the need for efficient and effective conduct of the C

ouncil’s business; 
 (e) 

the M
em

ber has a particular expertise or know
ledge in the m

atter that m
ay be 

useful to its consideration (e.g. a M
em

ber could be allow
ed to speak, but not 

vote) ; 
 

 

65



3 

 

(f) 
the interest is com

m
on to the M

em
ber and a significant proportion of the 

general public; 
 

(g) 
any other relevant considerations. 

 
6. 

T
E

R
M

S
 O

F
 D

IS
P

E
N

S
A

T
IO

N
S

 
  

D
ispensations m

ay be granted - 
 

(a) 
to participate in any discussion of the m

atter; and/or 
 (b) 

to participate in any vote on the m
atter; 

 (c) 
for one m

eeting; or 
 (d) 

for a lim
ited period not exceeding 4 years. 

 7. 
D

IS
C

L
O

S
U

R
E

 O
F

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 
  

A
ny C

ouncillor w
ho has been granted a dispensation m

ust declare the nature and 
existence of the dispensation before the com

m
encem

ent of any business to w
hich it 

relates.  A
 copy of the dispensation w

ill be kept w
ith the R

egister of C
ouncillors’ 

Interests.  
 8. 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 D

IS
P

E
N

S
A

T
IO

N
S

 
  

T
he C

ouncil m
ay w

ish to consider granting a general dispensation to all C
ouncillors in 

situations w
here every M

em
ber is likely to have a disclosable pecuniary interest e.g. 

w
hen setting the precept and annual budget. 

66



 
T

O
W

N
/P

A
R

IS
H

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 
  

D
IS

P
E

N
S

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
 F

O
R

M
 

 

P
lease give full details of the follow

ing in support of your application for a dispensation.  Y
ou should refer to 

the accom
panying ‘D

ispensations G
uidance’.  If you need any help com

pleting this form
 please contact the 

T
ow

n/P
arish C

lerk. 
 Y

our N
am

e: 
 

T
he 

business 
for 

w
hich 

you 
require 

a 
dispensation (refer to agenda item

 num
ber if 

appropriate) : 

 

D
etails of your interest in that business: 

    

 

D
ate of m

eeting 
or tim

e period (up to 4 
years)  for w

hich dispensation is sought: 
 

D
ispensation requested to participate in any 

discussion of that business by that body : 
Y

es/N
o* 

D
ispensation requested to participate in any 

vote taken on that business by that body: 
Y

es/N
o* 

S
pecify 

w
hich 

of 
follow

ing 
ground(s) 

you 
consider relevant to your request: 

G
rounds (a)/(b)/(c)/(d)*  

*  D
elete as ap

p
ro

p
riate

 

 (a) 
so 

m
any 

M
em

bers 
of 

the 
C

ouncil/C
om

m
ittee  have disclosable 

pecuniary 
interests 

that 
it 

w
ould 

im
pede 

the 
transaction 

of 
the 

business (i.e. m
eeting  inquorate); or 

(b) 
w

ithout 
the 

dispensation 
the 

representation 
of 

different 
political 

groups on the C
ouncil w

ould be so 
upset as to alter the likely outcom

e of 
any particular vote; or 

(c)  
the dispensation is in the interests of 
persons living in the authority’s area; 
or 

(d) 
it is otherw

ise appropriate to grant a 
dispensation. 

A
N

D
 

P
lease 

provide 
full 

reasons 
w

hy 
you 

consider a dispensation is necessary (use a 
continuation sheet if necessary) : 

R
eason(s) for application: 

S
igned: 

 
D

ated:  
 

 
P

lease retu
rn

 yo
u

r co
m

p
leted

 fo
rm

 to
 th

e T
o

w
n

/P
arish

 C
lerk 

67



68

T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
STANDARDS COMMITTEE    6TH SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
 
 

PROPOSED TRAINING PROGRAMME  
(Report by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services and  

Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Notwithstanding recent changes to standards arrangements, the 

Committee’s terms of reference have always prescribed that it give 
training and advice on matters relating to the Code of Conduct.  The 
former Committee promoted the importance of training as a way to 
avoid complaints and save the time and resources which would need 
to be committed to investigations and hearings.  This approach has 
generally been successful given that the Council has been required 
only to investigate ten cases since the inception of the ethical 
standards process under the Local Government Act 2000.   

 
1.2 In view of the provisions of the Localism Act 2011 in relation to 

standards and the requirement to adopt a new Code of Conduct and 
given the Regulations which followed on disclosable pecuniary 
interests, the Monitoring Officer considers it opportune to host a new 
programme of training for District Members and town and parish 
councils this Autumn. 

 
1.3 The Committee may wish to note that recently elected District 

Councillors already have received Code of Conduct training by 
attending the new Members’ induction course on 10th May 2012. 

 
2. PROPOSED ARRANGEMENTS FOR TRAINING 
 
2.1 Although there still remains an opportunity for the Monitoring Officer 

to attend, when invited, individual town and parish council meetings, 
given the degree of the changes which have occurred recently it is 
proposed that arrangements be made for a more comprehensive 
programme to take place in the Autumn. 

 
2.2 Experience suggests that locally based area sessions are better 

attended so it is proposed that the Chairmen and Clerks of town and 
parish councils be invited to attend one of four venues on dates to be 
arranged –  

 
 Civic Suite, Pathfinder House, Huntingdon 
 One Leisure, St Ives; 
 Priory Centre, St. Neots; and 
 Amenity Centre, Yaxley. 
 
2.3 District Councillors local to the venues also could take the opportunity 

to participate in the sessions. 
 
2.4 In terms of training for District Councillors, it is proposed to run 

several drop-in sessions in advance of scheduled meetings of 
Panels/Committees as follows – 

 

Agenda Item 10

69



   
 
 Monday 10th September:  6-7pm prior to ELSG (to which Members of 

the Cabinet and Chairmen/Vice-Chairmen of Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels are invited)  

 
 Tuesday 11th September: 6-7pm prior to Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel (Environmental Well-Being) 
 
 Monday 17th September:  6-7pm prior to Development Management 

Panel 
 
 Tuesday 2nd October: 6-7pm prior to Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

(Social Well-Being) 
 
3. PROPOSED PROGRAMME 
 
3.1 It is suggested that the session should last approximately 60 minutes 

and comprise - 
 

♦  a power point presentation by the Monitoring Officer – 30 
minutes 

♦  review of two/three case summaries in smaller groups – 15 
minutes 

♦  an opportunity for questions – 15 minutes 
 

4. CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 The Committee is requested to endorse the proposed approach to 

training this Autumn. 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 
 
Contact Officers:  
Christine Deller, Democratic Services Manager 
Tel Nos:  (01480) 388007. 
 

70


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	5 APPOINTMENT OF LEAD AND DEPUTY INDEPENDENT PERSONS
	HDCIPRecruitmentPack-V2

	6 APPOINTMENT OF PARISH COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES
	7 PROPOSED TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDARDS COMMITTEE
	ARTICLE 9

	8 NEW STANDARDS REGIME - PROGRESS
	New Code of Conduct correspondence T and PC

	10 PROPOSED TRAINING PROGRAMME

